OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Date:

Monday 10 January 2022

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Committee Room B-06, Lambeth Town Hall, London SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair), Councillor
Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Stephen Donnelly, Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Vice-Chair), Councillor
Marianna Masters (Vice-Chair), Councillor Irfan Mohammed and Councillor Martin Tiedemann

Substitute Members
Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Joanna Reynolds, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake, Deputy Mayor,
Councillor Pauline George and Councillor Jessica Leigh

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Maria Burton, Telephone: 020 7926 8703; Email: mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Thursday 30 December 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Friday 07 January 2022.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Friday 07 January 2022. Upon doing so they will be invited to attend
the meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct
(para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the
Council, a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they
must withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote
on that matter unless a dispensation has been obtained from the
Monitoring Officer.

2

Minutes of Previous Meeting
To agree the minutes of the meeting of 12 October 2021 as an
accurate record of the meeting.

1-8

3

Minnie Kidd House: background of closure and future use of
the asset
Contact for enquiries: Jane Bowie, Director of Integrated
Commissioning (Adults), jbowie@lambeth.gov.uk

9 - 40

4

Medium Term Financial Strategy
Contact for enquiries: Amaris Wong, Group Manager, Strategic
Finance, 020 7926 7742, awong1@lambeth.gov.uk

41 - 62

5

Benefits and Welfare Support
Contact for enquiries: Tim Hillman-Brown, Head of Revenue and
Benefits, Resident Experience and Digital, 020 7926 5297,
thillman-brown@lambeth.gov.uk

63 - 78

6

Work Programme
Contact for Information: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic
Services Officer, 020 7926 8703, mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

79 - 128

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MINUTES
Tuesday 12 October 2021 at 7.00 pm
Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW

Members Present:

Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins (Vice-Chair),
Councillor Jonathan Bartley, Councillor Tim Briggs, Councillor Stephen
Donnelly, Councillor Joshua Lindsey (Vice-Chair), Councillor Irfan
Mohammed and Councillor Martin Tiedemann

Apologies:

Councillor Marianna Masters

Also present
online:

Councillor Danial Adilypour, Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor
Joanna Reynolds

1

Minutes of Previous Meeting
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting dated 14 July 2021 be approved as a
correct record of proceedings.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Councillor Martin Tiedemann declared that he was an investor in Brixton Solar One, a
local energy cooperative.
While not a pecuniary interest, Councillor Joshua Lindsey declared that he worked for
Transport for London.

3

Lambeth's climate emergency response: progress update
Hannah Jameson, Assistant Director Sustainable Growth and Climate Change
Response, introduced the report to the Committee:
 The Council’s climate change response had last been presented to Overview &
Scrutiny a year earlier, and this report provided an update on progress made
since then towards becoming net-zero by 2030.


In the preceding 18 months, the Council had secured £14m in external grants,
which had allowed work to start on climate mitigation projects such as retrofits,
flood mitigation, Healthy Routes and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods.



The Citizens’ Assembly brought together 50 residents over the course of six
weeks, hearing from experts and other assembly members, and resulted in a set
of recommendations for the Council and its partners.



The Council was in the process of developing a new Road Danger Reduction
Strategy.

Page 2
The Committee then heard from witnesses.
Councillor Joanna Reynolds addressed the Committee, stating that:
 She had been part of the Citizens’ Assembly Working Party, and noted the
success of the assembly. She had found that participants wanted to be involved
in addressing climate change, both as individuals and contributing to
organisations’ plans.


Major organisations as well as the Council needed to develop their own climate
action plans.



Residents should be encouraged to be involved in the development of the climate
action plan, and the Council should provide resources for residents to find out
how to reduce their carbon footprint.

The Committee then heard from Councillor Nicole Griffiths, who commented that:
 It was positive that the steering group was cross-party and involved young
people, and she hoped that young people would be encouraged to continue their
involvement.


Actions to address climate change needed to be driven by fairness and
inclusivity, and the impact on the most vulnerable during the transition to being a
low carbon borough needed to be considered. A ‘polluter pays’ stance should be
adopted where possible.

Claire Alleguen, Community Partnerships Specialist, Transport for London (TfL)
provided the following information:
 The Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy aimed to address the climate
emergency through reducing car journeys, with the ambition of 80% of journeys
being made by public transport or active travel by 2041.


TfL worked closely with boroughs to deliver the aims of the Strategy, such as
through TfL-backed schemes like Healthy Streets. All Healthy Streets schemes
were tested to ensure improvements in air pollution and congestion, and the
provision of green infrastructure was encouraged.



Other interventions promoted by TfL included Low Traffic Neighbourhoods, and
reallocating road space to pedestrians and cyclists, such as in Brixton Town
Centre.

The following information was provided to the Committee by officers and the
representative from TfL in response to questions:
 London Councils had done a London-wide analysis on the response to the
climate emergency with regard to housing. Across London, directors of housing
had agreed shared standards and a preferred approach.


The Government was expected to publish its housing and heat programme
imminently. This would likely provide only some of the funding needed for
retrofitting.



The Citizens’ Assembly had suggested that the Council could use its regulatory

Page 3
role with private landlords to encourage retrofitting of private rental properties.


Street properties were harder to retrofit due to their smaller scale, and the
Council had applied for government funding specific to street properties.



The main risks facing the borough as a result of climate change were flooding,
overheating and air quality.



The Council had developed a new Surface Water Management Plan to asses
and manage movement of water within the borough. Analysis on this had been
completed earlier in the summer, and this would be used in intervention plans.
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS), as well as other interventions, were
planned to be used more often to address surface water flooding.



Increasing tree canopy cover was being explored as a method of reducing
overheating.



The climate action plan considered adaptation as well as mitigation.



Guidance had been developed by the Greater London Authority (GLA) on whole
life cycle carbon in housing, and this was reflected in local planning policy. The
policy required the consideration of the carbon to be emitted through demolition,
although this was significantly more difficult with older buildings.



Under the GLA Act, Lambeth had to work towards the Mayor’s climate change
targets, although its own targets could be more ambitious.



If a school decided not to install green screens, officers would work with the
school to address any concerns and would give further opportunities to install
them.



The Societal Impact Framework was a corporate tool to assess the impact of
decisions.



Information on waste targets and comparisons with statistical neighbours could
be provided to the Committee.



Officers could provide information to the Committee on using Council assets and
communications to alleviate the effects of climate change.



The new Road Danger Reduction Strategy would be provided to Members once
complete.



Lambeth had adopted a pioneering approach to reducing road danger, but it had
not translated into improved figures. The majority of the worst injuries were on
the TfL road network.



TfL’s Safer Junctions programme was launched in 2017 to improve the safety of
the 50 most dangerous junctions. As of May 2020, works on 41 had been
completed and the remaining junctions were due for completion by 2024.



The Council’s emissions data for 2019-20 would be published shortly, and would
include consumption data for the first time.

RESOLVED:
1.
That all those involved in the Citizens’ Assembly be congratulated for their

Page 4
efforts.

4

2.

That the findings of the Citizens’ Assembly form the basis of the Council’s carbon
reduction action plan, and that the Council continue to involve residents in
discussions on climate change.

3.

That the Council does more to encourage reduction in household and business
waste generation and to increase reuse and recycling in line with targets, through
the use of incentives, penalties, improved communication and best practice from
equivalent authorities and community reuse schemes.

4.

That the Council prioritises the retrofitting of its most energy inefficient homes,
particularly on-street properties.

5.

That the option of incentivising private occupiers and landlords to improve the
energy efficiency of their homes be explored, particularly through co-operative
and community energy providers.

6.

That the Committee be provided a strategic overview of how the Council and its
partners work together on climate change mitigations and adaptations.

7.

That details of the targets, outcomes and evidence for the interventions included
in the report and action plan be provided to the Committee.

8.

That the Committee be provided details of how the Council will continue to
involve residents in the development of its carbon reduction action plan.

9.

That details of the Communications Strategy and how it will be publicised to
residents be provided to the Committee.

10.

That the Committee be provided details of flood mitigation actions to be taken in
the near future, including targets and expected outcomes.

11.

That the Council works with partners, particularly Thames Water, to ensure that
flooding is addressed in an adequate and timely manner.

12.

That the Council’s targets on transport emissions be clarified to the Committee
and that a 2030 target for net zero emissions relating to transport be adopted.

13.

That details of the forthcoming Road Safety Strategy be provided to the
Committee, particularly regarding the involvement of young people in its
development and the work of partners such as Transport for London and schools.

14.

That the Committee be provided with details of the Council’s current demolitions
policy, the Mayor of London’s guidance on demolitions and the Royal Academy
of Engineering’s proposals on a presumption against demolition.

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods Commission: Draft Report
Councillor Mary Atkins, Chair of the Commission and Vice Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee, introduced the item, explaining that:
 The Commission had been established relatively quickly due to the rapid
introduction of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs) under emergency Covid-19
legislation.


The Commission heard from a range of witnesses, including two professors, the
mother of the first person to have air pollution listed as a cause of death, and

Page 5
others on both sides of the debate surrounding LTNs.


The recommendations from the Commission focussed mainly on the monitoring
of LTNs and how similar programmes could be implemented in the future to avoid
some of the issues experienced with LTNs.



Communications had been a key issue identified by the Commission. Research
by the Local Government Association had shown that if a council was already
trusted by residents, there was more trust in the rapid introduction of LTNs.

The Committee then heard from Dwayne Barnett, a local resident whose business was
within a new LTN:
 He lived in Brixton and worked within one of the LTNs introduced in 2020.
Business had been negatively affected by Covid-19, and combined with the new
LTN, trade was down to 5% of previous levels.


People came to Brixton from outside the local area, and many chose to drive.
Businesses were struggling as a result of reduced passing traffic.



His mental health had been negatively affected due to the impact the LTN had
had on his business.



Crime had increased in LTNs due to the quieter roads.

During discussion of this item, the guillotine fell at 9.00pm.
meeting continue for a further period of up to 30 minutes.

RESOLVED: That the

Councillors Irfan Mohammed and Nicole Griffiths, members of the Commission, then
made the following comments:
 They thanked residents, businesses and officers for their engagement with the
Commission.


While many businesses had raised concerns regarding the introduction of LTNs,
others viewed them more positively.



Although the Commission had concluded, Councillors would still support
businesses and residents.



Some residents who had initially been against LTNs had changed their minds as
a result of the positive impact on air quality and traffic.

The Chair then read out a statement from Councillor Jane Pickard, a member of the
Commission, which stated:
 More exemptions to LTNs should be provided to disabled people and their
carers.


Disability groups, such as DASL, should have been consulted and engaged with
from an early stage.



There needed to be an acknowledgement that some problems caused by LTNs
were greater than the benefits.

Councillor Danial Adilypour, Cabinet Member for Sustainable Transport, Environment
and Clean Air (job-share) addressed the Committee, stating that:

Page 6


He welcomed the report and some of the Commission’s recommendations were
already being implemented.



LTNs had been implemented quickly due to the requirements of emergency
legislation, and it was important to reflect and learn lessons in an ongoing
manner.



Exemptions for disabled people would be considered before any trial LTN would
be made permanent.

In response to questions from Members, Councillor Mary Atkins and officers stated that:
 The Council’s Monitoring Strategy had published shortly after the introduction of
LTNs to demonstrate how their impacts were being monitored, and independent
consultants had been contracted.


A range of indicators were being used to assess the impact, including traffic
numbers, SCOOT data, bus journey times, emergency services response times,
and other information. This would provide an objective, transparent assessment.



In cases such as LTNs where there was clear conflict, external conflict resolution
could be contracted, as officers and Members were not sufficiently trained in this.



The Climate Assembly had shown that when people felt involved and listened to,
it was easier to resolve differences.

RESOLVED:
To approve the report for presentation to Cabinet subject to consideration of the
following comments:
1.
That a strategic overview of the implementation of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
be conducted with a view to provide guidance on how similar interventions could
be implemented in an evidence-based manner in the future.

5

2.

That local people’s feedback is listened to and that the Council proactively seeks
to resolve conflict and disagreement amongst residents.

3.

That the Council ensures that the needs of disabled people are met.

4.

That the feedback and needs of individual businesses, particularly those
negatively affected, be considered and responded to.

5.

That communications be utilised effectively across the Council to ensure
residents and businesses are aware of LTNs and any changes.

Work Programme
Committee Members suggested the following areas for potential future scrutiny:
 The impact of the reduction of Universal Credit on residents.


The outcome of court case, such as Macintosh Court and the legal challenge to
the Cressingham Gardens development.

RESOLVED: That, subject to the comments above, the work programme and the status
of actions (Appendix 1) be noted.

Page 7
The meeting ended at 9.26 pm
CHAIR
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 16 December 2021
Date of Despatch: Friday 19 November 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
E-mail: mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 10 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Minnie Kidd House: (i) background of closure and (ii) future use of asset
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care (job-share): Councillor Jim Dickson
and Councillor Lucy Caldicott
Report Authorised by: Andrew Eyres, Strategic Director Integrated Health and Adults Care
Contact for enquiries: Jane Bowie, Director of Integrated Commissioning (Adults),
jbowie@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
Following the presentation on care home provision and delivery in Lambeth to Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC) in July 2012, this report provides an update on one recommendation specifically on
the circumstances of the closure of Minnie Kidd House in February 2021.

FINANCE SUMMARY
None arising directly as a result of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To note the content of this report with two attached appendices

Page 10
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

At its meeting of 14 July 2021, Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) considered a report on
care home provision in Lambeth. At the meeting, there were a number of recommendations made
including a request for a further report on the circumstances regarding the transfer of residents
from Minnie Kidd House to new care placements due to fire safety issues. The appendices
attached detail the background and processes involved in moving the people residing in the unit to
new placements when the building failings were identified.

1.2

All of the 13 remaining residents were eligible for Continuing Healthcare (CHC) funding and have
routine reviews of their care packages as part of that support so whilst the reports focus on the
immediate actions during the closure, ongoing oversight by services continues. As have been
raised, there are families still concerned and distressed by the closure of Minnie Kidd House, but
there are others who have settled successfully in their new placements and found the replacement
homes well meet their needs.

1.3

There has been a particular focus on the closure of Minnie Kidd House though there was another
care home closure, the Laurels Care Home with 18 remaining residents, as well in the last 12
months. All reasonable attempts will be made to avoid any other care homes shutting but lessons
learned from both experiences will be built in to managing any further situations in the future.

1.4

A further recommendation from OSC requested a single point of contact for people in Lambeth,
accessible to anyone, irrespective of what support they may be entitled to from health and social
care services. The contact point is available at: https://beta.lambeth.gov.uk/adult-social-carehealth/contact-adult-social-care-team and further work has been completed to make the front door
more responsive for any initial enquiries. A review of information and guidance on the website will
be completed in the last quarter of the year, in line with timescales for the OSC recommendations.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The Committee recommended that an update on Minnie Kidd House be provided at a future
meeting. This is included as Appendix 1 and Appendix 2.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. For context, local authorities have a
duty under section 5 of the Care Act 2014 to promote the efficient and effective operation of a
market in services for meeting care and support needs with a view to ensuring that any person in
its area wishing to access services in the market (a) has a variety of providers to choose from who
(taken together) provide a variety of services; (b) has a variety of high quality services to choose
from; and (c) has sufficient information to make an informed decision about how to meet the needs
in question (section 5(1)). In arranging for the provision by persons other than it of services for
meeting care and support needs, a local authority must have regard to the importance of promoting
the well-being of adults in its area with needs for care and support and the well- being of carers in
its area (section 5(4)).

4.2

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

Page 11
5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

The first appendix to this report sets out the process and all the stages of communication and
engagement with former residents and their families prior to closure of Minnie Kidd House. The
appendix outlines advice sought from the Consultation Institute on this matter.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Not applicable

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

The consideration given on the impacts on the former residents and their family members is set out
in appendix 1 of this report, the history and processes of the closure of Minnie Kidd House.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Not applicable.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
Not applicable.

9.2

Health
This report demonstrates the outcomes of partnership working in particularly difficult circumstances
to best consider and meet the needs of people who were residents in Minnie Kidd House in line
with the approach outlined in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
Not applicable.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
Not applicable.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
Not applicable.

9.6

Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
Not applicable.

9.7

Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
Not applicable.

9.8

Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
Not applicable.

9.9

Not applicable.

Positive Health and Wellbeing
9.10 Not applicable.

Page 12
Other Offers (Innovation)
9.11 Not applicable.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable.

Page 13
AUDIT TRAIL

Name and Position/Title
Councillor Lucy Caldicott

Councillor Jim Dickson
Andrew Eyres, Strategic
Director
Pete, Hesketh, Assistant
Director (Finance)
David Thomas, Contracts
Lawyer (Legal Services)
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

01.12.21

06.12.21

01.12.21

06.12.21

01.12.21

08.12.21

Finance and Property

01.12.21

03.12.21

Legal and Governance

01.12.21

03.12.21

Legal and Governance

01.12.21

01.12.21

Lambeth Directorate
Cabinet Member for
Health and Adult Social
Care
Cabinet Member for
Health and Adult Social
Care
Integrated Health and
Care

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

06.12.21
03.12.21
07.12.21

Appendices

background to closure
Appendix 2 - Minnie Kidd House (MKH):
proposed approach for the asset/building

No
No
N/A
4. Not applicable.
Overview and Scrutiny, 14 July 2021, item three:
Care Home Provision and Delivery in Lambeth
Appendix 1 – Minnie Kidd House (MKH):

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

APPENDIX 1

MINNIE KIDD HOUSE BACKGROUND TO CLOSURE
REPORT TO LAMBETH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
Version: Final
Date:
November 2021
Sarah Austin Director of Integrated and Specialist Medicine

Contents
Summary
1. Summary of Timelines
2. Organisation and Governance
3. Communication with Residents and Families- meeting the duty to involve
4. Assessment and review of care and support needs
5. Outcome of family meetings
6. Transfer to new care homes and follow up arrangements
7. Fire safety detail
8. Lessons from the process of transfer
9. External Review
10. Conclusion

Page 1

Page 16

SUMMARY
As a result of extraordinary circumstances, Guys and St Thomas NHS FT (GSTT) needed to transfer 13
residents to other care settings over the period October 2020 – Feburary 2021.
The organisation is very aware of the impact this had on individuals and families. We went to
significant lengths to try to manage this process diligently and sensitively but recognise we were not
able to meet all expectations. We apologise for the impact on individuals and families and for any
areas where we could have improved the process of engagement and transfer. We are ensuring that
lessons learned are embedded in our practice.
This paper describes the Trust’s approach, in difficult circumstances, to supporting, involving and
communicating with residents, their families and carers, as well as public forums in Lambeth from
November 2020 until the current time, the Friends of Minnie Kidd House, Keep our NHS Public
(KONP) and Healthwatch Lambeth.
The Trust has discussed this matter with the Consultation Institute (the Trust is a long-standing
member). In response the Institute indicated that with the level and extent of activities undertaken
in the process so far, there is a strong case that the Trust has met its statutory ‘duty to involve
service users’ established by s242 NHS Act 2006 (as amended) in this regard. The Trust is assured by
the Institute’s position and considers that its extensive and compassionate engagement with
residents, their families and carers alongside other interested parties demonstrates compliance with
this duty.
We have submitted a separate paper on the potential future use of the site which recognises that
there is no current requirement for the previous service to be reinstated. That paper also recognises
the considerable challenges for alternate use posed by the structure of the buildig, its geography,
and site limitations.

Page 2

Page 17

1. SUMMARY OF TIMELINES
Minnie Kidd House (MKH) was established in the early nineties when local provision of long term
specialist nursing care was limited and was configured as a 28 bed continuing care unit managed by
Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Trust, providing 24 hour nursing care for frail elderly and physically
disabled adults.
The building is a Trust freehold asset owned by GSTT since the transfer of community sites from
Lambeth PCT in 2011. It was built in the 1980s and opened in 1992.
In July 2020 the Trust was advised that a number of aspects of fire safety of the building were not
compliant with modern standards and that significant remedial works were required. In order to
mitigate the risk to residents and to enable works to take place, all of the 14 beds on the first floor
were closed and the 2 remaining residents moved from that floor to the ground floor into two
vacated beds. At the same time extra staffing and new procedures were introduced to mitigate risks
to the residents.
In September 2020 works commenced to the first floor, with the 13 residents remaining on the
ground floor. However the disruption, noise and dust created was not acceptable and generated
considerable complaints from residents and staff and the works were suspended. A review was
undertaken and reluctantly the Trust made the decision that works could not be completed whilst
residents remained in the building.
At this point the Trust also reviewed the overall structure of the building and its long term suitability
for providing continuing healthcare. A range of structural issues were known to be of concern and
were not conducive to providing modern long term care for frail and physically disabled adults and
older people. Most significant of these were that the bedrooms were small with no bathroom
facilities, many residents were not able to leave their room due to narrow doorways and there was
no suitable lift for residents to access the first floor. In addition investment was needed to ensure
the building had good digital access. The fabric of the building including external doors and windows
also required considerable improvement.
The Trust determined that in addition to the remedial fire works, other significant building
alterations would be required to render the building fit for purpose for the long term future
provision of high quality continuing healthcare. These alterations would need to be designed, costed
and funded and would inevitably result in many fewer beds than previously. The resources and
timescale for this could not be determined with any certainty and would be dependent on the
development of a full business case that would need to be supported by commissioners following
needs analysis and with an appropriate source of capital funds.
In October 2020 , following a detailed review and quality impact assessment, the Trust made the
decision to cease provision of care in the unit and to work with residents, families and
commissioners to find new care homes and alternative facilities for the remaining 13 residents. As
the decision and timescale regarding the future use of the building could not be certain, this move
was proposed to be a permanent move for all residents particularly given the risks to older people
with frailty, of a two-step move.
The Trust recognised that this would be very unexpected, difficult and challenging for residents’
families and staff. Most residents and their families had an expectation that Minnie Kidd House was
their home for life and it was therefore anticipated that significant support would be required to
enable the transition to new care homes as smooth as possible. The Trust organised a team to

Page 3

Page 18

provide support to ensure this move was undertaken with utmost compassion for residents and
families.

2. ORGANISATION AND GOVERNANCE
The guidance and principles of the NHS England guidance document. ‘Managing Care Home Closures
: A good practice guide for local authorities, clinical commissioning groups, NHS England, CQC,
Providers and Partners’ were a driver for the governance arrangements.
A Compassionate Decant Resident Transition working group was established as a sub group
reporting to the existing Minnie Kidd Oversight group.
The remit of the Resident Transition Group was to
 Develop personalised plans for transfer for all residents, that had been agreed by residents,
relatives and the multi-disciplinary team (MDT)
 Identify a suitable alternative location of care
 Support transfer to the new location of care
 Maintain support at the new location until the individual had fully transitioned
In order to support this process, additional staff resources were identified and redeployed, these
consisted of
 A programme manager and project manager from the GSTT transformation team whose role
was to support the clinical leads, co-ordinate the team, ensure effective communication,
tracking of progress and provide updates and assurance to the oversight group.
 An experienced Discharge Specialist Nurse full-time to provide one to one support to
residents and families to assist them to identify a suitable new home and undertake the
required processes to enable a smooth transition to a new care home.
The resident transition working group met weekly from 15th Oct to 8th Feb 2021
Membership of the group was as follows
Role
Head of Nursing
Consultant geriatrician
GP
Lead Pharmacist
Safeguarding lead
Lambeth CCG/ council joint continuing care commissioning manager
Occupational Therapist /Lead therapist
Discharge Specialist Nurse
Programme manager
Project manager
Deputy general manager/ service manager
Unit Lead nurses and practice support staff
Other CCG commissioning managers as required
Healthwatch were included in the oversight group and provided with regular liaison and updates
from the transition group by the programme manager. The senior executives in both GSTT and the
Lambeth and Southwark Boroughs were briefed at all stages and regulators kept informed.

Page 4

Page 19

3. COMMUNICATION WITH RESIDENTS AND FAMILIES - MEETING THE DUTY TO INVOLVE
In these difficult circumstances, the Trust recognised the importance of a comprehensive approach
to communicating with and involving the 13 residents and families, as well as other stakeholders.
This section describes our activities between November 2020 and March 2021 in particular and the
range of ways in which the Trust’s aimed to support, involve and communicate with: Residents and their families
 Local groups in Lambeth, including Keep Our NHS Public (KONP) and Friends of Minnie Kidd
House
 Local stakeholders, including Ward Councillors and OSC chairs
 Healthwatch Lambeth (who led a survey of residents).
The Trust has discussed this matter with the Consultation Institute (the Trust is a long-standing
member). In response the Institute indicated that with the level and extent of activities undertaken
in the process so far, there is a strong case that the Trust has met its statutory ‘duty to involve
service users’ established by s242 NHS Act 2006 (as amended) in this regard. The Trust is assured by
the Institute’s position and considers that its extensive and compassionate engagement with
residents, their families and carers alongside other interested parties demonstrates compliance with
this duty.

Our communication plan set out to support the 13 residents and families and covered







explaining the background to the problem,
the options we had considered and to set out the rationale behind the need to transfer
residents,
how we would involve families and be responsive to their requirements
explaining how we would undertake a comprehensive assessment and planning process to
secure a new placement,
providing assurance that the residents would be transferred safety with good follow on
support,
the offer of full access to clinicians and managers in GSTT

Formal letters and emails were supplemented with phone calls and invitations to face to face/ teams
meetings and we were very responsive to questions and concerns as is shown below but also
recognised that some families were too upset to fully engage. The Friend of MKH were also kept
informed.
Our communication on the fire safety issues was set out in a letter 20th August.
Following an inspection of Minnie Kidd House, Guy's and St Thomas' is taking steps to ensure the unit
is fully compliant with fire safety regulations. Work commenced on Monday 17/8/20, and is expected
to last six weeks. To ensure continuity of care for our residents, it has been agreed that the residents
will be able to remain in the unit during the work. To ensure their safety, additional fire safety
measures have been put in place, including overnight security patrols and enhanced staff
training. We have reviewed our processes to ensure all residents can be safely evacuated from the
building in the event of a fire alarm. Our staff will be discussing this with you in more detail in
relation to [ ] care.

Page 5

Page 20

Please note that whilst we are putting these measures in place we are also undertaking multidisciplinary team reviews of all the residents at Minnie Kidd House to assess their care requirements.
These reviews are being conducted by a senior clinical team who are working closely with all staff in
the unit. This is supporting a wider piece of work to ensure that the care delivered to our residents is
of the highest possible standards, in line with the values of the Trust.
We'd like to thank you for your understanding and cooperation whilst this work is taking place. If you
have any questions or concerns regarding the care provided to xxx please ask to speak to the ward
sister by telephone (020 3049 5820).
During September it became apparent that the essential safety works could not continue with our
residents remaining in MKH and following an executive process, option appraisal and impact analysis
it was agreed that there was no option but to transfer residents. The Trust was not able to continue
to care for residents in a facility that couldn’t meet safety standards, and it was not appropriate to
mitigate that risk for months and years ahead.
All residents and families were initially contacted by telephone to inform them of the background to
the fire safety issues causing a need to move their family member and this was followed up with a
Letter in mid-October 2020;
As you may have noticed over the past few weeks and months, there has been a lot of new activity at
Minnie Kidd House. Part of this work has been to address some concerns regarding the safety of the
building itself. We had a fire safety inspection that revealed some issues we needed to deal with
urgently. We wanted to deal with these by doing some extensive building works, but unfortunately it
has become clear to us that the amount of work that would be required, despite possible mitigations,
would be far too disruptive for our residents.
As you may be aware, this work started in September but we had to stop it on the 24th September
2020 because the noise and mess created was creating an unacceptable level of disruption.
Unfortunately we aren’t able to carry out the building works that are required without causing
significant disruption for our residents and staff.
After much consideration, we have taken the decision that our residents will be better cared for in an
environment that safely meets their individual needs. Despite our best efforts this cannot be in
Minnie Kidd House as the building currently stands.
We have therefore taken the decision to move our residents out of the building and support moves to
new locations. For many of our residents this is likely to mean moving to a care or nursing home, but
all options will be considered. We will need to discuss with you and [ ] over the coming days and
weeks so we can work out together what this means for you and how we can best support [ ] to move
to a new place that [ ] can call home.
We have told our staff about this today and we are also speaking with [ ]. We are glad to have had
the time on the phone with you when we spoke on [ ]. Appreciating how concerning this news will be
to you, we would like to offer you further opportunities to discuss this in more detail in person or by a
telephone or video call. If you have any questions about this letter and would like to discuss it further
please contact Dr Shaheen Khan, Clinical Director or Julie Glyn-Jones, Head of Nursing by telephone
on 020 7188 9771 or e-mail [ ].
The discharge specialist nurse contacted all residents’ families to introduce herself and arrange to
meet with them individually and support them through the process of identifying and moving their
loved one to a new home.
A letter from Healthwatch was also passed to each resident and family to offer their support for
families during this process.

Page 6

Page 21

This communication from the Trust did not give a definitive date by which the residents would need
to move as it was felt this would add distress to families in an already difficult situation.
The Trust put in place significant numbers of additional staff and resources to ensure residents were
safe and that the fire risks were adequately mitigated.
Over the next few months we presented in Lambeth public forums in November 2020 and March
2021, briefed councillors, and met with families on teams.
It should also be noted that we were communicating with families on care concerns that had also
been raised.
A individual log was kept of all correspondence, meetings and calls as in the anonymised version
below
Communication Overview
Patients name:
Relatives full name:
1. MDT DOCUMENT
Link to document

2. HOLISTIC CARE PLAN
Link to document

Date of document
26/08/2020

Date of document
14/10/2020

3. COPY OF ALL LETTERS THAT HAVE BEEN SENT
Subject
Informing of fire
safety works
Closure of MKH
Healthwatch letter
Update on the fire
safety concerns and
remedial work
required at Minnie
Kidd House
Update on closure
date of MKH
Response to email
queries
Notes from care
review meeting on 18
December 2020

Copy of letter

Date sent

Method of delivery

20/08/2020

Recorded delivery

19/10/2020
10/11/2020

Recorded delivery
First Class post

26/11/2020

Recorded delivery

07/01/2021

Special delivery and
email

12/01/2021

Email

12/01/2021

Special delivery

Details

Date

4. COPY OF ALL OTHER CORRESPONDENCE
Correspondence type
Phone call

Subject
Informed about
safeguarding concerns

Page 7

15/07/2020

Page 22

– initial call by PDN,
followed up by HON
10/11/2020
Summary sent to
family on 07/12/2020

Discussion with CI and
SK

Meeting

5. DETAILS FROM COMMUNICATIONS LOG
Extract below:
Stakeho
lder

Contact
details

JF

Action
to be
taken
by

Completion
Date

13/10/2
020

Has several
questions
regarding
the decision
to close the
unit and the
process that
will be
followed in
relation to
discharge
planning.
Considering
how to
escalate
concerns

Post comms feedback
(initial reaction

Further actions

Letter to be posted
confirming conversation posted on 19/10/2020
Offering to arrange
meeting

4. ASSESSMENT AND REVIEW OF CARE AND SUPPORT NEEDS
Many of the residents were extremely frail and vulnerable, and the team were very conscious that a
smooth transition to a suitable home that could meet the individual needs of the residents was
crucial. It was also recognised that any transfer of an individual that was close to end of life would
not be allowed.
Two residents had been placed in MKH as temporary placements; the need to decant Minnie Kidd
House enabled a greater focus on these residents’ requirements and decisions on their longer term
place of residence were successfully and quickly achieved.
Most of the remaining 11 residents did not have capacity and many residents had very complex
physical health symptoms that required delicate and sensitive symptom control and some residents
had pre-existing distressed behaviours due to the nature of their health conditions that could be
very challenging for a care team to manage. The team recognised that a very individualised approach
was needed for each resident and sought advice from specialists including a psychologist and
learning disability staff for behaviour and mental wellbeing strategies, and from palliative care and

Page 8

Page 23

the @home team for support with physical symptom management. This included planning for follow
up support to the new care home and the homes’ clinical teams following transfer.
The discharge co-ordinator worked closely with the multidisciplinary care team at MKH and met with
each resident. Each resident’s care and support needs were reviewed and care plans updated. The
original continuing care assessment forms were reviewed and the discharge co-ordinator liaised with
each responsible CCG regarding the appropriate placement opportunities available to each resident.
A list of available and potentially suitable local homes was compiled for each resident dependent on
their specific care needs. Some relatives raised concerns about their involvement in the care reviews
and care home proposals.
Depending on individual requirement, a full multi-disciplinary team meeting was held to consider
care needs and potential support requirements. Family meetings with the care team and the
discharge co-ordinator were also arranged where this was agreed.
Where appropriate additional community teams were involved in supporting this discussion and
decision making process and in offering or providing support to the new care home after transfer,
for example the @home service, tissue viability specialist nurses and the community palliative care
team.
At the family meetings with the discharge co-coordinator, the residents’ care needs and potential
care placements were discussed with each resident / family. Some families had identified other
alternative care placements or locations that were out of local boroughs and these were
investigated and taken forward by the discharge co-ordinator.
A ‘Trusted Assessor’ document was completed by the discharge co-coordinator for each resident.
This provides a summary of each resident’s care needs in order for the care home to make an
assessment as to whether they are able to meet these needs. This is usual practice and replaced the
need for the care home staff to visit the resident to assess them which was important considering
the pandemic restrictions.
The discharge co-ordinator liaised with the potential care home providers, and the CCG’s, the
residents and the families to ensure that suggested placements were suitable to meet the resident’s
needs and that they were acceptable to their family.
When a care home was agreed by all, the discharge co-ordinator worked closely with the MKH care
team to ensure all of the fine details of the residents care needs were communicated to the new
care home in advance to transfer. In addition to the Trusted Assessor document a pack of detailed
information was provided to each new care home which included, for example, the residents likes
and dislikes in relation to food and drink and activities, and gave detail on what adjustments were
needed in relation to their symptom control, mood behaviour and psychological support.

5. OUTCOME OF FAMILY MEETINGS
There were 13 residents remaining in MKH in mid-October 2020.
In early December when the majority of residents had transferred or had a plan in place, the
programme manager wrote to the two families who had not discussed care arrangements,
explaining that very few residents would remain by Christmas, asking them again to arrange to meet,
explaining that the range of care homes would be more limited as time passed. This letter also

Page 9

Page 24

offered to put them in touch with other families and care homes where residents had successfully
transferred and settled well.
In early January there was no progress in the discussions and we recognised that the families were
distressed. We made more than 10 offers to meet but the families were not able to discuss future
care arrangements. Whilst we completely understood the situation for those families and their
concerns, we were in a difficult position of continuing to manage a building that was not compliant
with safety standards even though mitigation was in place in the short term.
It was agreed by the Trust that a firm date for closure and transfer of remaining residents needed to
be the end of January 2021. The Trust was under significant pressure due to CovId-19 and the unit
needed to be staffed at very high levels for very few residents due to the fire risks. However as it
was now mid-December, it was decided not to communicate this to the families prior to Christmas
as it was felt that this would distress families further.
The letter informing families of the firm date was sent on 6th January 2021.
It was explained to the families that the unit could not stay open for so few residents and it was also
explained that if the families would not discuss future care arrangements with us, then the Trust
would have no option but to seek an Independent Mental Capacity Advocate (IMCA) to advocate on
the residents behalf. Both families did respond to this letter and agreed to meet with the team to
discuss future care homes.
Both families then identified their preferred homes. Although these were not homes that were on
the list that the Trust and CCG had compiled with one was not available or taking new admissions at
that time and the other was not in a category usually considered suitable for the individual resident,
the team worked closely with the CCG and council commissioning team who successfully negotiated
placements at both of the families preferred care homes of choice. Dates were agreed with each
family.
The final resident was transferred on 10th February 2021.

6. TRANSFER TO NEW CARE HOME AND FOLLOW UP ARRANGEMENTS
A private ambulance was booked for each resident to ensure that travel arrangements were of high
quality and at a time suitable for each resident and care home.
On the day of transfer to a new home a member of MKH staff familiar with the resident travelled
with the resident to the new home and handed over to care home staff and helped settle the
resident into the new home. Due to COVID restrictions MKH staff could not stay in the care home for
long. The detailed pack of information for each resident was provided to the care home.
A list of staff from the MKH care team was provided to the new care home with telephone contact
details, also contact details of other specialist teams that would continue to provide support in the
new care home.
All residents were followed up by the team the following day and over the first few weeks as needed
by the care home, and staff at MKH were available to answer any queries from the new care home
or from families 7 days a week.
The consultant geriatricians followed up each resident at approximately 30, 60 and 90 days post
transfer and liaised with the Care home, GP and Geriatrician attached to each care home.

Page 10

Page 25

A number of practical issues arose in the days and weeks after transfer and were resolved through
this process including some equipment needs and advice to the new clinical staff on symptom
control. Some residents became unwell during the follow up stages and the MKH geriatricians liaised
with the care home or hospital ward to ensure effective communication regarding their medical and
clinical history and management of symptoms.

7. FIRE SAFETY DETAIL
Up to July 2020
Internal inspections where a number of Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) issues were identified and a
schedule of appropriate works were in planning stages. These included additional sounders/fire
alarms, work related to ensure full building compartmentation (that is, dividing the premises into
fire protected compartments through the use of fire doors, fire-resistant materials etc. to help
prevent the spread of fire and smoke).
6 and 7 August 2020
An internal fire inspection ‘walk around’ was undertaken by the Guy’s and St Thomas’ (GSTT)
Essentia fire team and Minnie Kidd House (MKH) clinical staff team. This inspection reviewed the fire
safety risks, issues, procedures and practices in place, and identified the following: additional staff
training to be implemented, individual resident personal evacuation plans to be reviewed and
updated, practical issues such as exit arrangements for evacuation procedures to be improved, and
full building compartmentation to be completed.
August 2020
An external report was commissioned and confirmed that fire compartmentation throughout the
building did not meet all required safety standards, and remedial action was needed, a number of
fire safety doors within the building and some doorframes needed to be replaced and that all
remedial works should be carried out by a 3rd Party accredited company which upon completion can
issue appropriate certification, and a Fire Door and Fire Compartment Management System should
be implemented.
September 2020
A further external report was commissioned and additional requirements were actioned including
improving the local on site management of fire risks, improved documentation of inspections,
improve training of staff, and management of contractors.
August –September 2020:
GSTT undertook and additional internal review alongside its internal review of fire safety, to review
the overall care environment at MKH. This identified a number of areas which needed improvement
so that the building design and layout met the standards of a modern care facility. This includes
ensuring appropriate room space, ensuite facilities and room entry and exit arrangements.
August – Jan 2021
Actions urgently undertaken by the Trust to mitigate the fire safety risks included



Reviews of individual patient risk assessment and evacuation planning
Vacating the first floor completely

Page 11

Page 26






Additional staff training: 100% of staff trained as fire wardens with 99% of staff trained on
patient evacuation
Provision of significant additional staffing over the 24 hr period and a 24 hour security safety
staff presence
Remedial works to, or the replacement of, the majority of fire doors completed and some
fire stopping completed on the ground floor corridor.
Weekly meeting of fire safety estates team with the clinical leads to discuss any fire issues or
concerns.

Building works were paused on 24 September due to the noise, dust and disruption to residents.

8. LESSONS FROM THE PROCESS OF TRANSFER
There has been significant analysis, reports produced and learning from the process of transfer of
residents from MKH. These reflections include;
 Many team members reflected that a firm, or at least indicative, date for closure of the unit
should have been provided to residents and families at the very beginning of the process.
 Relatives who did not engage in communication with the team and discharge co-ordinator
could have been provided with more regular updates on where we were at in the process.
 Safeguarding advice could have been more consistent at transition meetings, and in
preparing drafts of letters to families.
 The approval and sign off process for letters communicating with families could have been
simplified and speeded up.
 The team could have potentially anticipated the level of challenge from some families and
obtained legal and mental capacity act advice at the very start of the process.
In addition the Trust asked Healthwatch to provide additional review and recommendations
from 5 families included;







That GSTT consult with and meaningfully involve affected families at early stages of the
process, taking extra time to meet with them and allow for the fact that they are people
managing other priorities and unable to attend meetings at short notice.
Give people adequate reassurance for the reasons behind a significant decision to ensure
trust and confidence for the rest of the process.
Have awareness of how GSTT manages a process, for instance when trying to arrange
meetings with families against a deadline, may lead to people feeling threatened or that
there is an abuse of power, and take steps to de-escalate the situation.
If providing support, signposting information or similar, ensure that the information is
accurate and appropriate for the families in their situation to avoid unnecessary confusion
and distress, given the amount of time and effort it takes to research a decision such as a
new home. Families and service users are partners in decision making when a service that
aims to provide personalised care and should be respected as such.
Continuity of care to remain a priority in all situations, including unusual situations such as a
fire safety concerns. While this may have been one, the families did not appear to have
been reassured of this. Lack of consistency in care plans when they are being redrafted in
the face of an unplanned move risks further damaging confidence and trust in the service.

The trust is grateful for the feedback from Health Watch and although not yet formalised as a report,
will be incorporating the learning into any future similar siutations.

Page 12

Page 27

9. EXTERNAL REVIEW
As reported to Trust Board 20th Oct, an external review has also been undertaken into the quality of
care, patient safety culture and clinical governance at Minnie Kidd House. As a result of the findings
significant learning is being spread across the clinical group and more widely through the Trust’s
Vulnerable Persons Assurance Committee.
That learning continues to be actively followed up to ensure improvements are embedded in
practice across the organisation.
10 CONCLUSION
The transfer of 13 residents from Minnie Kidd house was a significant and challenging process for
residents, families and the MKH team. The Trust considers that it undertook an exceptionally
detailed and comprehensive process of engagement recognising that given the circumstances, it felt
very different from some relative’s perspectives.
For the two residents who were on temporary placements this process facilitated a successful and
speedier relocation, however for the remaining 11 residents and families, the need to leave MKH
was unexpected and undesirable.
The Trust invested additional resources and intensive support to facilitate the transition of residents
and work closely with families. For the majority of residents and families this was accepted and
families worked with the team and were supported to identify new care homes where most were
relocated prior to Christmas.
For two of the residents this enabled the resident to be re-located closer to their family members at
their family’s request, in order to allow family to visit more often.
A small number of resident’s families were not able to work with the team and were not able to
accept the need to move their family member. They wanted their loved one to remain at MKH, and
they disputed the veracity of the Trusts decision making process. This significantly delayed the
communication process into January 2021. However all residents were ultimately relocated to the
families preferred care home of choice.
The feedback received from the Healthwatch report and through other means reflects the strength
of feeling from some of the families in relation to this most difficult process. The Trust commits to
taking the learning from this process into any similar changes that might occur in the future.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

APPENDIX 2
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2021
Report title: Minnie Kidd House (MKH) – proposed approach for the asset/building
Contact for enquiries: Nabil Jamshed Head of Corporate Governance, Integrated and
Specialist Medicine, Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust, nabil.jamshed@gstt.nhs.uk
mobile: 07874887413

REPORT SUMMARY
1.1. This paper outlines current considerations in relation to the future use of Minnie Kidd House
(MKH), which is an asset owned by Guy’s and St Thomas’ Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
(GSTT).
1.2. The Integrated and Specialist Medicine clinical group (ISM) of GSTT host services relating to
“Long-term conditions, Rehabilitation (illness/injury)”. ISM, under the provision of the current Care
Quality Commission requirements and license, provided health and care services including
accommodation for persons who require nursing or Personal Care, Diagnostic and Screening
procedures, Physical Disabilities, Treatment of Disease, Disorder or Injury, Caring for adults over
65 years of age.
1.3. The report summarises considerations regarding the future use of the site and its implication to the
organisations within the system namely GSTT, Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), local
councils (Lambeth mainly, and Southwark), South East London (SEL) region and the Integrated
Care Systems within London.

FINANCE SUMMARY
1.4. OSC is kindly requested to note some key financial considerations below.
1.5. The cost of keeping the building maintained while empty, months 1-3 are as follows…





Utilities
Building/Compliance/Facilities
Security Officers
Total

£5,977.00
£11,482.00
£54,013.00
£71,472.00

1.6. This compares to the following costs for the equivalent period in the previous financial year





Utilities
Building/Compliance/Facilities
Security Officers
Total

£10,775.00
£15,099.00
£0
£25,874.00

1.7. OSC is asked to note the financials outlined in the later sections of this paper, noting that doing
nothing will continue to incur the above costs to the Trust.

Page 30
CONSIDERATIONS
1.8. OSC is requested to note the options and appraisals presented in this report. This includes an
update on the state of the building, undertaken needs assessment (previously presented to OSC
by the CCG on 14th July 2021).
1.9. Future use of the site as a health facility is constrained as the site may not be suitable for the
purpose based modern healthcare facility. Additional constraints include the geographical location
of the site (see map in appendix 1), access and parking facilities for patients, visitors and staff and
the required level of investment, as outlined in the table below in section 3.
1.10. Based on the lack of commissioning need and the constraints of the site and the financial
considerations, reuse as a continuing health care inpatient facility is not recommended.
1.11. The potential commissioning requirement for neuro rehabilitation beds is being considered and the
most likely site for this would not be at MKH but with other beds for example at Pulross a short
distance away.
1.12. Other currently known NHS demands are unlikely to be met by this facility given geography and
site restraints
1.13. In the absence of clear NHS demands for the site the option to dispose of the asset with an option
to reinvest in other priority services needs to be considered.
1.14. It is estimated that the current site value ranges between £5 – 6m. Reinvestment of any revenue
from the disposal provides an opportunity for investment into enhanced NHS services for the local
population.

1.

CONTEXT

1.1. Minnie Kidd House has been a 28-bed inpatient unit for NHS continuing healthcare (CHC) for frail
elderly and vulnerable patients with long term conditions. patients who most benefit from the
intensive care and support needs to be offered by the NHS
1.2. The building is a Trust freehold asset built in the 1980s that opened in 1992. The building is
approximately 1000 sq.m over 2 floors and includes substantial grounds. There are 28 bedrooms
of approx. 9.8 sq.m. There are a large conservatory and 2-day room areas. Parking is very limited.
1.3. It has been owned by GSTT since the transfer of community sites from Lambeth PCT in 2011. It is
a 5-minute walk from Clapham South Tube on the northern line and accessible by many bus
routes. A map, photographs and floor plans are provided in appendix 1. It is noted that the site is
on a narrow residential road with roadside parking, and so any future use of the site would need to
be sensitive to the local residents and minimise traffic.
1.4. The value of the asset is estimated to be £5-6m (£1.9m building and £4m land) net Secretary of
State (SOS) contribution.
1.5. In 2020, it was acknowledged that the building required significant remedial works to meet building
fire safety standards; this could not be completed whilst the residents were in situ. All 13 residents
were transferred to a care home or other places.
1.6. The building is now vacant and is partially de-commissioned. The building is compliant with fire
safety standards for general use. Actions from the fire risks identified in relation to fire doors, door
frames and fire compartmentation are complete.
1.7. There is an understandable local interest in the future use of this estate including the Friends of
Minnie Kidd House, Keep our NHS Public, local councillors, former patients’ families and local

Page 31
residents. GSTT is aware of the keen interest in the use of the space from a number of public
meetings and conversations.
1.8. A paper was previously presented to the OSC on 14th July 2021 by the Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) that explained a wider consideration of the care home market undertaken by the
CCG, recognised the importance of the keen local interest and included a detailed assessment of
the needs for the service.
1.9. In addition, OSC is asked to note the contents of the separate paper being presented at its
meeting on 16 Dec 2021, which details the historic account of events surrounding MKH and steps
taken by the Trust to involve residents and families during the process of transfer.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

In addition to the fire safety works, the environment and layout of the building currently are deemed
not fit for purpose for the delivery of inpatient care. The 28 bedrooms are small for the care of
highly dependent patients, there are no en-suite facilities and few appropriate or accessible
disabled bathroom facilities, doorways are narrow and many patients were unable to leave their
rooms. There is no suitable lift for first-floor patients to enter or vacate the building.

2.2

There is also a range of upgrade works identified to bring the building up to current standards,
these include electrical works, lighting, flooring, and lift replacement. Work completed to date
renders the building compliant with the fire safety and security regulation for its general use.
However, it is still not fit for the purpose of an in-patient bedded unit.

2.3

In addition, the Wi-Fi and internet connectivity is poor and will require upgrading before any future
NHS use. The funding for this was included in the community IT upgrade programme which has
been paused at MKH pending a decision on future use.

2.4

The impact of COVID has highlighted the need for more local provision in networks or
neighbourhood locations, able to address local needs and meet the challenge of health
inequalities, bringing hospital services closer to home and enabling co-located working with local
partners in social care, primary care and the voluntary sector. The post Covid recovery plans for
building back better will require adaptable spaces suitable for virtual and digitally-enabled services.

2.5

There are two aspects of needs assessment that needs to be considered part of this proposal. This
includes the NHS needs and Local Authority needs.

2.6

The paper outlines a number of possible service requirements within the boroughs including NHS
needs which are explained later in this proposal.

2.7

A detailed paper was presented to OSC on 14th July 2021. The paper outlined and concluded that
there is no future commissioning need for the services that were provided from Minnie Kidd House.

2.8

There needs to be a determination of the suitability of the site to address agreed service needs.
Any use of the site needs to ensure that the site is best placed and the most economic
environment for the proposed care needs.

2.9

The building needs significant sums spent to enable it to become fit for its purpose as a modern
care facility. Current capital constraints may not prioritise this investment over other critical
equipment and infrastructure demands.

2.10 This paper highlights four areas of consideration for the site, which are summarised below.

Page 32
2.11 The constraints of the site include the geographical location of the site, restrictions of access and
parking facilities for patients, visitors and staff precluding high footfall, and the required level of
investment for any refurbishment.
Option 1: Multi-functional flexible outpatient, diagnostic and community facility
2.12 A multi-functional site to serve a range of GSTT directorates and could enable opportunities for colocation of local services with partners. It could include an office base or other facilities for
community teams and provide a base for local neighbourhood services. It would support the
strategic direction to integrate health and social care, community health and primary care,
supporting integrated local provision, joined-up prevention and wellbeing services.
2.13 This option would be part of the consolidation programme in community estates and support the
response to safety and security concerns in other sites. This may potentially free up space
elsewhere for relocation of teams, such as community adult or children’s services, or provide
space that could support the decant of consulting rooms at Gassiot House.
2.14 There are space requirements for consolidating community staff bases including the integrated
health and social care community teams and for a neighbourhood nursing hub. Current community
facilities lack virtual clinic space, group treatment space, meeting and training rooms and
appropriate gym facilities.
2.15 The Lambeth clinical cabinet is open to explore the use of the building as a focus for Covid
recovery plans, with prevention, wellbeing and local care provision supported by all partners in the
alliance including the voluntary sector.
2.16 It could mirror some of the facilities that are provided at the Tessa Jowell Centre in Dulwich by
providing a similar resource in the south of Lambeth, providing low-level diagnostics such as ECG,
echocardiogram and blood testing.
2.17 This option is significantly undermined by the geography and site limitations. In addition the
considerable costs and timescales to upgrade the current infrastructure of MKH to meet the
specifications of the community diagnostic hub are not anticipated to be completed in time to fully
utilise the funding opportunities available. The timescale of completion of any additional works
exceeds the timelines of this programme.
Option 2: A SEL community diagnostic centre (CDC – previously known as Community
Diagnostic Hub)
2.18 The facilities to be included in a diagnostic centre could include;
 Imaging: CT, MRI, ultrasound, plain X-ray
 Cardiorespiratory: echocardiography, ECG and rhythm monitoring, spirometry and some lung
function tests, support for sleep studies, blood pressure monitoring, oximetry, blood gas analysis
 Pathology, phlebotomy and endoscopy, consulting and reporting rooms
2.19 Due to the location of MKH on a narrow residential road and with limited parking, the hub would
need to be limited to low volume, non-complex, low acuity and ambulatory patients only. The
imaging facilities would need to be sited on the ground floor and hub provision could extend to the
first floor for the provision of other diagnostics and consulting rooms.

Page 33
2.20 It would potentially benefit the residents of Wandsworth in the SW London sector as it is situated
close to the border with Wandsworth.
2.21 This option would attract capital and revenue funding from the CDC programme and be considered
within the governance and timescales of this programme. However, the I.T and infrastructure
upgrade costs, electrical works and groundworks will need to be considered and further funding
would need to be identified. The cost and time associated with the upgrade work required to bring
MKH in line with the requirements and specifications of the Community Diagnostic Centres are not
deemed feasible.
Option 3: Inpatient care
2.22 The building is refurbished with a total number of beds to be considerably less than the previous 28
beds, possibly as low as 12.
2.23 The building would require considerable alterations to ensure it is fit for purpose for inpatient care
including enlarging room sizes, creation of en-suite facilities and improved accessible bathrooms
and a lift upgrade large enough to accommodate beds and stretchers.
2.24 The Local Authority and CCG’s needs assessment presented to OSC on 14th July 2021 concluded
that there is no future commissioning need for the services that were provided at the MKH site and
demand for those services is better met in other placements.
2.25 If a requirement for inpatient beds emerges from commissioning conversations, the Trust would
prefer to consolidate any in-patient beds onto the Pulross Centre co-located with the intermediate
care and neuro-rehabilitation beds. This also mitigates the significant clinical challenges of
managing isolated inpatient beds in the community. The Pulross centre is 1.9 miles from MKH.
2.26 Due to the reduced level of in-patient care, in a facility that is not fit for purpose and where the
patient health and care needs can be best met elsewhere within the system, this option is not
recommended
Option 4: Vaccination Centre
2.27 The possible use of MKH as a vaccination centre has been considered by GSTT
2.28 However, following careful consideration, a more suitable site and location has been found and
pursued. Therefore this option is no longer being pursued
Option 5: Disposal
2.29 The disposal of MKH would require engagement with the Department of Health (DoH) in order to
ensure that the property is re-allocated within the Lambeth catchment area, if and when a suitable
need is identified
2.30 Permission may then be granted by the DoH for GSTT to dispose of the property producing gain to
be shared between GSTT and the DoH
2.31 OSC to note that the disposal option enables opportunity to reinvest in other priority services needs
of the local population, offered by GSTT

Page 34
Other Considerations
2.32 To compensate for capital expenditure constraints, it is possible to consider a sale and leaseback
arrangement although the constraint remains that the site is in a narrow residential street which
precludes high footfall with very limited parking spaces available for patients, visitors and staff.
2.33 The site could be provided to public and third sector agencies who may be better at retaining the
social value of the site or move existing public services there, noting they would have to bear the
costs of renovation and be cognisant of site constraints.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

OSC is requested to note that upgrade works to bring the building up to current standards have been
paused; these include electrical works, lighting, flooring, IT upgrades and lift replacement. In
addition, the environment and layout of the building are not fit for purpose of inpatient care.

3.2

The 28 bedrooms are too small for the care of highly dependent patients, there are no en-suite
facilities and few appropriate or accessible disabled bathroom facilities, doorways are narrow and
bed-bound patients would not be able to leave their rooms. There is no suitable lift for first-floor
patients.

3.3

The estimated cost of the options outlined below ranges from £1-5m. The cost for each of the options
will require further analysis.
Options to be considered

Options

Scope

Advantages

Disadvantages

Option 1

Multi-functional
flexible outpatient,
diagnostic and
community facility:
Building to be
converted into
flexible multi-function
Face to Face and
Virtual Outpatient
and community base.
Could include Some
low-level diagnostics
ECG phlebotomy
and ultrasound echo.

1 - Maximises the existing layout of
the building
2 - Multifunctional Clinical Spaces
3 - Office/ meeting /training
group/gym space
4 - Could enable GSTT patient
services to be relocated into the
community or free up other
community sites
5 - Virtual clinical space created
6. Could provide a focus for Covid
recovery services

1 - Requires capital investment- no
identified source other than
diagnostic capital
2- low volume activity only

Option 2

A SEL community
diagnostic centre
(CDC) South East
London (SEL)
Diagnostic Hub (Inc.
X-ray)

1- Imaging: CT, MRI, ultrasound,
plain X-ray
2 - Cardiorespiratory:
echocardiography, ECG and rhythm
monitoring, spirometry and some
lung function tests, support for sleep
studies, blood pressure monitoring,
oximetry, blood gas analysis.
3 - Pathology: phlebotomy.
4. Attracts capital and revenue from
CDH programme

1 - Works to convert space would be
considerable
2 - Requires large capital investment
but potential source
3 - 4. Would create high traffic and
footfall in a residential area

Page 35
Option 3

Reduced level of inpatient care
possibly as low as
12:
In-patient care for a
reduced number of
beds

Maintains inpatient use of the
building
2

Reduced bed capacity from 28 to +/12 tbc increasing unit cost
2. Existing provisions can be met in
local care homes
3.
4. Clinical challenges managing
isolated bedded units in the
community. 5. Significant capital
investment needed without source

Option 4

Vaccination Centre
Post-COVID
vaccination centre

This option has been explored and a
more relevant and fit for purpose
alternative venue has been secured

NA

Option 5

Disposal
opportunity

1 - Zero capital investment needed
2 – Potential of capital receipt if
disposed of that can be reinvested

1 - Revenue cost impact to
decommission and secure 24/7
2 - Loss of clinical space within the
community

*estimated costs at a point in time. However, construction market price inflation will need to be considered.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

As described in the sections earlier, OSC is asked to note the proposal from GSTT as to the
options for the future use of the site, the site limitations and proposal that if the site is sold, it is
intended to re-invest the proceeds into other capital projects at GSTT

4.2

NHS Foundation Trusts have powers to dispose of land without consent of NHS Improvement
except where the land is used to deliver for essential purposes. The disposal of the site may
require complying with other legal and statutory duties. Further legal advice should sought as
necessary.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

As explained in section 2, disposal of the site may require the Trust or another party to consider
various legal and statutory requirements, as it may be applicable and professional and legal advice
will be sought.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

OSC is requested to note that further work will be required to articulate and understand any
financial risks in relation to the disposal of the asset and any perceived financial opportunity which
may not materialise fully. This includes the perceived and estimated value £5-6m (£1.9m building
and £4m land) is net of Secretary of State Contributions (SOS) and additionally, capital gains tax
may also be applicable. Furthermore, there is a minimal risk of another health care provider

Page 36
coming forward to provide NHS services from the site. Capital gain liability can be minimised
against the investments made to date.
6.2

There are no known current risks from the facility to the public, staff and the community. The
building is under the responsibility of Essentia.

6.3

The diagnostic hub option may require additional planning consents for large scale scanning and
imaging facilities in such a residential area.

6.4

The diagnostic hub option may attract public opposition due to the perceived risks of radiological
scanning technologies in a residential area.

6.5

The options for outpatient facilities will increase pedestrian and vehicle traffic. MKH is sited on a
narrow residential street, this may limit the volume of activity that could be delivered.

6.6

A vacant building is at risk of squatting and general building deterioration. It has been established
that there is no asbestos in the building

Appendix 1 – Map

Minnie Kidd House, 51C Hazelbourne Road, London SW12 9NU

Page 37
Appendix 2 – Photographs of building exterior
Front entrance

Front entrance 2

Page 38
Rear of building 1

Rear of building 2 including conservatory

Appendix 3 – Ground Floor plan

Page 39

Appendix 3 – First Floor plan

Page 40

Page 41

Agenda Item 4

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 10 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 020 7926 8703,
mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report introduces the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26, which was initially
considered by Cabinet on 13 December, and will be presented to Cabinet and Council for approval in
February 2022. The Committee is invited to discuss this report at its 16 December meeting and forward
any recommendations to Cabinet.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To consider the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26 and accompanying
appendices, and to forward any recommendations to Cabinet in advance of its 07 February 2022
meeting.

Page 42
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) considers the Council’s budget position and savings
proposals to meet the funding gap each year in order that it can forward any observations and
recommendations to Cabinet for consideration prior to the appropriate Cabinet meeting. This brief
cover report serves to introduces the relevant report: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to
2025/26

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

OSC is invited to consider the contents of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26
(including appendices), question invited representatives of the Cabinet and senior offices on the
proposals, and formulate any recommendations to Cabinet.

2.2

Following the 16 December meeting a paper will be drafted summarising the
observations/recommendations of OSC, which will be reported to Cabinet for consideration ahead
of its meeting on 07 February 2022.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this covering
report. Detailed financial comments are set out in Appendix 1.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no legal implications arising as a direct result of this covering report.

4.2

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

N/A.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

N/A

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

N/A.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

N/A

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
None.

9.2

Health
None.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None.

Page 43

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Please see Appendix 1.

Page 44
AUDIT TRAIL
Please see Appendix 1

Name and Position/Title
David Rose, Democratic
Services

Lambeth Directorate
Legal and Governance

Date Sent

Date
Received

08.12.21

08.12.21

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

N/A
03.12.21
08.12.21

Appendices

Appendix 1: Medium Term Financial Strategy
2021/22 to 2025/26 (including relevant appendices)

No
No
N/A
N/A
Please see Appendix 1

Page 45

CABINET 15 DECEMBER 2021
Report title: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2021/22 to 2025/26
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Amaris Wong, Group Manager, Strategic Finance, 0207 926 7742,
awong1@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
Since we last reported on the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), presented to Cabinet in July
2021, we have received the Chancellor of the Exchequer’s Budget and Spending Review which
outlined a continued tough financial outlook for London boroughs.
By London Council’s calculations London boroughs needed a £2bn increase over the spending
review period but they estimate that they will in fact receive around £1.1bn.
While the increase in local government’s core spending (CSP) is welcome, this increase will only
return local government to estimated funding on a par with 2010 levels, after over eleven years of
austerity and without accounting for increased demand in that time period. In real terms CSP has
been falling since 2010/11, down by 29% in 2020/21 and will be 19% below 2010/11 levels by
2024/25 – around £2.2bn less. This is 5% below the level of the England average and follows the
trend of London being at the bottom of the pile for government funding such as the Community
Renewal Fund and the Levelling Up Fund, with the distribution of the UK Prosperity Fund still to be
announced.
In addition, £3.7bn of the spending power attributed to local government represents central
government assumptions around local councils increasing their council tax (by 2%) and adult social
care precept (by 1%).
We cannot escape the fact that central government funding forms an ever-smaller share of funding
to Lambeth council, with local funding, council tax and business rates growth representing
increasing proportions. Since 2013/14 when business rates growth was introduced, we have seen
government funding reduce from 75.5% to 51.5% by the end of our MTFS planning period. There
continues to be no announcement of the scope or the timetable for the planned local government
finance reforms.
As rises in council tax become a more significant factor in providing additional resource to local
authorities, and the cost-of-living soars for our most financially exposed residents, we have
consulted on expanding the council tax support (CTS) scheme for those residents that find
increases in council tax increasingly unaffordable and struggle to make ends meet. This proposed
support will permanently reduce the bills of almost 7,000 vulnerable households eligible for CTS,
with most seeing their bills reduced to nil. Together with the Winter Support Package recently
announced by the council to cover food, energy bills and housing costs for vulnerable families,

Page 46
alongside holiday support for families in receipt of free school meals, this support is part of the
council’s increased efforts to protect Lambeth’s families from the cost-of-living crisis.
In addition, the adult social care reforms have not been fully explained by government and so the
financial effects are not fully understood, with most of the funding raised through Health and Social
Care levy going to the NHS. The council will need to remain financially resilient and sustainable
during what are very uncertain times.
But we must remain vigilant, as the new Omicron variant demonstrates, the covid-19 crisis is not
over and it will continue to have significant financial effect on the level of resources available, both
now and in the future, to the council and its partners. The already existing demand placed on our
services – particularly in social care and temporary accommodation – have been added to by the
pandemic and the continuing effect of the virus on our community and economy in the longer-term.
We will continue to take every opportunity to support vulnerable people in our communities, but we
must also be honest in our ability to do so in the face of gradually reducing grant funding, rising
inflation, and ever-increasing demand on our essential day to day services. Despite all these
pressures and uncertainties, we have maintained a balanced budget position without the need for
further cuts or new savings.
The current MTFS will continue to be developed to ensure that it underpins and supports the
delivery of the Borough Plan priorities and provide certainty to our most vulnerable residents who so
desperately rely upon our essential day to day services.

Finance summary
This whole report concerns the Council’s financial position.

Recommendations
1.

To agree and approve the change to the funding deficit as set out in Table 2 and the
consequent amendment to the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.

2.

To note the progress on planned changes to the Council Tax Support scheme for 2022/23 as
summarised in paragraphs 2.21 to 2.24

3.

To note the previously agreed savings summarised in table 3.

4.

To note the continued uncertainty regarding elements of government funding, price and
demand pressures and the need to ensure that budgets set each year are sustainable during
the settlement period to 2025/26 and beyond.

5.

To note the financial position of the Council’s budget in 2021/22 and the actions in place to
balance it over the period, including the use of reserves as required.

6.

To note the 4-year Capital Investment Programme for the period 2021/22 to 2024/25 as set
out in paragraphs 2.43 to 2.46 and summarised in Appendix 1.

Page 47
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The main objectives of our MTFS are to:
 Prioritise our resources in-line with the Council’s Borough Plan, and to ensure we
achieve our five goals.
 Maintain a balanced budget position, and to always set a MTFS which maintains
and strengthens that position.
 Provide a robust framework to assist the decision-making process within the
Council.
 Manage the Council’s finances with a forward looking four year rolling strategy.
 Deliver value for money to our taxpayers
 Exercise probity, prudence and strong financial control.
 Manage risk, which includes holding reserves and balances at an appropriate and
sustainable level.
 Continually review budgets to ensure resources are targeted on our key priorities.

1.2

This report sets out the changes to Lambeth’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which
was approved at July 2021 Cabinet. In July we reported a funding gap of £11.7m for 2021/22
to 2025/26. In these subsequent months, we have worked to challenge and validate the
pressures identified. We have also received the Chancellor’s Budget and Spending Review
(SR) for 2022/23 to 2024/25 in October. This set out some of the parameters for local
government funding in the SR period. We have to wait for the Provisional Local Government
Finance Settlement for more details. This is likely to be made just before Christmas.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS
Medium Term Financial Strategy
National Outlook

2.1

In its October economic and fiscal outlook, The Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR) set out
their forecast up to 2026/27 taking into account measures announced up to and including the
October 2021 Budget and Spending Review. With these assumptions in place, the OBR
expects Gross National Product (GDP) to grow by 6.5% in 2021 (up from 4% in March 2021)
and to reach its pre-pandemic level towards the end of 2021. Unemployment is still expected
to peak in the fourth quarter of 2021 but to a lower level than previously projected.

2.2

The recovery of the economy and the continuing regulatory changes following Brexit and
increasing inflation have exacerbated supply side pressures experience around the world.
Combined with the rise in energy prices and labour shortages in particular sectors, the OBR
projects CPI inflation to reach 4.4% in 2022, with further developments suggesting a peak
closer to 5%, the highest rate seen in the UK for nearly 30 years.
Local Government Outlook

2.3

The outcome of the latest Spending Review (SR21) was announced with the Budget in
October 2021. SR21 covers a period of 3 years, from 2022/23 to 2024/25, the first multi-year
spending review since 2015 (for 2016/17 to 2019/20). Spending Reviews set departmental
totals for the period, but the financial implications for authorities will not be known until at least
the provisional Local Government Financial Settlement due in December.

Page 48
2.4

The business rates baseline reset is due to be implemented for 2023/24. The intention of
planned reforms is for greater retention of locally generated business rates. However, the
policy costings of SR21 and subsequent statements by the Minister to the Parliamentary
Housing, Communities and Local Government Select Committee would suggest that greater
retention rates by authorities is unlikely to be implemented during this SR period. Similarly,
there has been no updates on other large-scale reforms promised for local government such
as the Fair Funding Review.
Spending Review (SR21) Announcements

2.5

The headline increase in Local Government funding for 2022/23 to 2024/25 is around 3% per
year, and a cash increase of £8.5bn over the SR period. New grant funding of £4.8bn has
been announced with the remainder expected from increases in Council Tax. The referendum
limit for Council Tax is expected to remain at 2% per year over the next 3 years and the
application of the 1% increase on Social Care Precept, meaning a total council tax rise of 3%
per year for residents.

2.6

The business rates multiplier has been frozen for 2022/23, with the resulting shortfall in
income expected to be fully compensated by government. The conclusion of the review on
business rates was also announced, with a move to 3-yearly revaluations from the current
timeframe of 5 years and a new business improvement relief, allowing businesses to pay no
extra business rates for 12 months after making improvements. Local authorities are expected
to be fully compensated for these measures.

2.7

Recovery support for the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure sector has been extended with 50%
relief on business rates for 2022/23. This is also expected to be funded by government.

2.8

There was no further funding relating to Covid-19 announced for local government.

2.9

Other new measures also announced:
 £4.7bn for core school budget, bringing per-pupil spending in England to 2010 levels
 £650m for youth services
 Continuing funding for Rough Sleeping Initiative and the Homelessness Prevention
Grant
 £1.8bn to regenerate underused land for housing infrastructure and facilities
 £850m for cultural and heritage infrastructure
 Additional £200m for the Supporting Families Programme
 £38m for cybersecurity
 £35m to strengthen local delivery and transparency
Health and Social Care Levy

2.10 The Government announced the Health and Social Care levy in early September which will
increase the national insurance contribution rates (NICS) paid by employees and employers
by 1.25% beginning in April 2022. Receipts from 2022/23 will be directed to the NHS. From
2023/24, receipts will be divided between Local Government, NHS and the Department of
Health and Social Care, however, the split was not specified in the announcement.
2.11 Public sector employers are being compensated for the increase in the cost of NICS through
the funding formulae. Narrative within announcement suggests that inflationary pressures and
demographic pressures will need to be dealt with locally through Council Tax, social care
precept and long-term efficiencies.

Page 49
London Context
2.12 In the Greater London Assembly’s October publication on London’s Economy, there are
encouraging signs of recovery with 43% of firms saying that they were operating at full
capacity in the previous quarter, a two-year high and back in line with the pre-pandemic
average. However, responses were collected prior to the latest rise in energy prices and driver
shortage.
2.13 The furlough scheme came to an end on 30 September 2021. At the peak, over 905,000
people benefited from the scheme in London and provisional figures indicate over 231,100
people were still receiving support as the scheme ended. London’s unemployment rate was
highest in the UK at 5.8% during the second quarter of 2021, with around 284,000 Londoners
unemployed during that period. Of those, 7,100 were Lambeth residents; for comparison, there
were 6,700 and 6,400 in Southwark and Wandsworth, our nearest neighbours.
2.14 Recent research conducted by the Joseph Rowntree Foundation found that more than half of
low- income households in London was facing arrears with at least one bill. The removal of the
£20 per week uplift in universal credit payments at the end of September is beginning to affect
arrears collection rates. Whilst the pause on applications for evictions have ended, the council
is actively working with tenants to try and help them sustain their tenancies. The number of
evictions carried out had been decreasing year on year prior to the pandemic and we expect
this trend to continue.
Spending Power
2.15 Our spending power is the way in which Central Government measures the overall revenue
funding available for local authority services. The calculation of spending power consists of
items as set out in the Settlement Funding Assessment; this includes grants as well as Council
Tax.
 Business Rates Income and Revenue Support Grant (RSG) – together these two
elements form the Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA). We expect the SFA to
remain broadly steady over the MTFS period. However, with the Business Rates
retention baseline reset due to take place in 2023/24, any increase in retained
business rates income is expected to be matched by a corresponding fall in RSG.
The SFA represent 43.5% of our 2021/22 net budget and is expected to fall to 41.6%
of the cash limit in 2025/26.
 Council Tax income is 41% (£136.1m) of our 2021/22 core funding but forecast to be
46% (£158.8m) by 2025/26. It should be noted that within our MTFS we have
assumed increases of Council Tax at 1.99% in each year from 2022/23 to 2025/26.
This is subject to formal agreement in February 2022. The effect of the proposed
changes to the Council Tax Support scheme have been included in our calculation of
the council tax base. In addition, the adult social care precept has been included at
1% per annum based on the expectation from Government that demographic
changes and unit costs increases will be funded locally. This is a change to our
assumptions made in July when we included 2% in 2022/23 figures.
 New Homes Bonus (NHB) has started to decrease over this period, in 2021/22 NHB
represents 1.4% of the cash limit (£4.5m). From 2020/21, no new legacy payments

Page 50
were paid. NHB is expected to be phased out completed by 2025/26 and not replaced
by alternative funding.
 Improved Better Care Funding (iBCF) represents 4.4% of the cash limit (£14.5m) in
2021/22 and includes amounts previously allocated as Better Care Fund and Winter
Pressures grant. Our MTFS forecast is for this to remain the same in cash terms (with
inflation eroding its spending power) over the MTFS period reducing its share to 4.3%
of the net budget.
 Social Care Grant and Lower Tier Services Grant represents 4.0% of the net budget
in 2021/22 and includes amounts previously allocated as Adult Social Care Support
Grant and Social Care Support Grant. This has been committed for the life of this
Parliament therefore we expect this to remain at the same level until at least 2025/26.
2.16 In recent times the increase in Council Tax has outpaced the increase in central government
funding which has increased the proportion of locally generated income. This trend continues
over the MTFS period with government funding and locally raised resources moving towards
parity. This is a significant change since the current system of Business Rates Retention was
introduced in 2013/14.

£m

Chart 1 Spending Power – government funding vs locally raised 2013/14, 2021/22 and
2025/26
400
350
300

24.5%
44.9%

250

48.5%

Locally raised resources
(Council Tax and
Business Rates growth)

200
Government Funding
(SFA and grants)

150

75.5%
100

55.1%

51.5%

2021/22

2025/26

50
0
2013/14

2.17 Whilst our spending power is forecast to increase at a steady pace from 2023/24 to 2025/26,
the increases have come from locally generated resources such as council tax and business
rates income over the guaranteed level of central government funding. within the borough.
Current government funding formulas do not take account of a number of demographic growth
and demand led pressures within the Financial Settlement. We, therefore, must manage and
fund these pressures from locally generated income sources. The demand led pressures
within Adult Social Care, Children Services and Temporary Accommodation continue to grow,
and we have built assumptions around these key areas within our Medium Term Financial
Strategy, however, as we have seen in recent years the demand led pressures continue to
grow beyond assumptions.

Page 51
2.18 The most recent announcements relating to social care funding gives a clear indication that
any demographic and cost increases are expected to be funded by local authorities. In
additional, it is unclear how the operation of the social care cap and the ability for self-funders
to access local authority arranged care will affect the cost of services across the whole sector.
We await consultation on the revised charging mechanisms related to the Adult Social Care
Transformation.
London Business Rates Pool
2.19 In preparation for further localisation of business rates, all 32 London Boroughs, the City of
London Corporation and the Greater London Authority were part of a business rates pool
arrangement from 2016-17 to 2020-21. However due to the uncertainty to business rates
income brought on by the pandemic, the pool was discontinued for 2021/22.
2.20 The boroughs continued to monitor the position throughout 2021/22 and as a result have taken
the decision not to form a pool for 2022/23. However, all parties will continue to monitor the
situation and remain open to pooling when circumstances are more suitable.
Council Tax Support Scheme
2.21 The council’s Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme was developed to support residents who
needed help paying their Council Tax. The current Lambeth scheme protects and supports
around 24,000 households each year. However, the Council recognises the financial
challenges faced by Lambeth residents due to Covid-19 and the rises in Council Tax costs and
wishes to offer a more generous Council Tax Support scheme for 2022-23 to support residents
financially.
2.22 The council is legally required to consult prior to any changes to CTS. Consultation ran from
30 June 2021 until 30 September 2021. Five potential options were consulted upon:
 Removing the 20% liability reduction
 Removing the £5 minimum weekly payment
 Removing mandatory minimum non-dependant deductions based on the
circumstances of the householder
 Removing mandatory minimum non-dependant deductions based on the
circumstances of the non-dependant
 Reducing the excess income taper to 20% from 25%
2.23 The cost of providing the additional support listed above is estimated at £3m and is already
included in the MTFS.
2.24 The consultation received 280 responses. Although not high, this is comparable to previous
CTS consultations and consultations in general. There was firm support from respondents for
all options.
Changes to the MTFS since July
2.25 We have adjusted our business rates assumption to include some transitional tapering
arrangement to compensate the loss of income due to business rate baseline resetting,
reducing the overall loss.
2.26 Looking again at service pressures and using the work done to identify savings, we are able to
reduce service pressures by £6.3m. At the same time, further pressures have been identified

Page 52
as we continue to look at wider changes brought on or accelerated by the pandemic:
increasing our forecast for inflation by £1m, funding the improvement of digital access and
ways of working and cybersecurity with £1.44m, including additional resources for measuring
performance of the children’s improvement programme with £0.2m, increasing learning and
development support for social care with £0.05m, removing undeliverable savings of £1.09m
and matching resources to increased volume of planning applications with £0.1m.
2.27 The effect of these changes has reduced the funding gap to £1.710m. We expect this to be
met through changes to fees and charges. A review is currently underway with proposals to be
included in the February budget report.
Table 2
Revised Funding Gap
Position at Budget Report July 2021
Funding Gap
Savings Agreed
Revised Funding Gap in July 2021

2022/23
£m

2023/24
£m

2024/25
£m

2025/26
£m

Total
£m

15.572
(13.698)
1.873

12.810
(4.975)
7.835

3.165
(2.790)
0.375

1.613
1.613

33.160
(21.463)
11.697

(1.365)

(4.474)

(1.590)

(0.152)

(7.581)

(0.508)

(1.651)

1.215

(1.461)

(2.405)

-

1.710

-

-

1.710

November 2021 Changes:
(Increase)/Decrease to Year on Year
Cash Limit Change
New Pressures
Revised Funding Gap

2.28 Although no new expenditure reduction has been required from services, the revised gap
takes into account previously agreed savings of £21.463m, summarised in the table 3 below.
The delivery of all agreed savings is essential for the financial resilience of the council.
Table 3

Type of Change
Income generation
Procurement (contract)
Service Change (Reduction in Provision)
Service Transformation (non-staffing)
Service Transformation (staffing)
Third Party Services
Total Savings

Previously Agreed Savings
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Total
£m
£m
£m
£m
3.241
3.870
0.964
8.075
1.450
0.055
0
1.505
0.770
0.275
0
1.045
3.674
1.980
1.826
7.480
4.029
0.500
0
4.529
0.534
(1.705)
0
(1.171)
13.698
4.975
2.790
21.463

2.29 In addition, agreed savings of £13.7m are to be delivered in the current year 2021/22, of which
£1.4m were brought forward from 2020/21. It is forecast that £11.658m will be delivered in
year with £2.05m rolled forward to be delivered next year, bringing 2022/23 savings up to
£15.748m.
COVID-19 – Impact on council’s finances
2.30 Costs associated with the coronavirus pandemic continue to impact the council and
expenditure is forecast to be £35.5m in 2021/22 as of quarter 2, with the main areas of spend

Page 53
including, providing support to local businesses, reopening the economy safely and
expenditure with in Adult Social Care to facilitate hospital discharges and on infection control.
There are also forecast income losses of £2.4m due to lower fees and charges receipts for the
council. At this stage, it is expected that pandemic related pressures will be met by grant
funding for the 2021/22 financial year.
2.31 The longer-term cost pressures that have resulted from the pandemic are not receiving
additional grant funding.
Financial Management & Performance
2021/22 Revenue Q2 Forecast Position
Table 4 General Fund Forecast Outturn 2021/22

Adults and Public Health
Children’s Services
No Recourse to Public Funds
Resident Services
Sustainable Growth and Opportunity
Finance & Investment
Strategy, Communications and Legal Services
Total

Full Year
Budget
£m
94.982
75.579
2.734
70.293
3.073
12.916
7.746
267.323

Forecast
£m
94.995
80.435
2.347
73.373
3.134
13.656
7.988
275.928

Forecast
Variance
£m
0.013
4.856
(0.387)
3.080
0.061
0.740
0.242
8.605

2.32 The position on the General Fund at the end of September is a forecast overspend of £8.605m
for 2021/22. The position for each directorate is summarised below, with greater detail
available in the quarterly Budget and Performance report presented to Cabinet.
2.33 Adults Social Care are forecasting to breakeven for 2021/22. However, this position is funded
by use of reserves and grants to alleviate staffing and third-party payments pressures, other
short-term projects and additional care costs incurred from the response to the pandemic. The
underlying overspend position in 2021/22 as of September is forecast at £3.8m, made up
mostly of third-party budget pressures in Learning Disability residential care and Mental Health
residential and nursing care. Funds carried forward from 2020/21 for staffing and provider
support will be used to offset additional expenditure in year and meet unachievable savings in
year. The overall position is approximately £2.8m more in expenditure than pre-pandemic
trends suggested. Work is progressing in revising long-term trends, but early information
shows that home care expenditure for older people has increased substantially and has only
been partly off-set by reductions in residential care expenditure as client numbers have
increased above pre-pandemic numbers. In addition, long-term cost increases in Learning
Disabilities appear to have accelerated over the last year.
2.34 Children’s Services are forecasting an overspend of £4.8m for the financial year. Within
Children Social Care there is a forecast overspend of £2.8m, which relates to supernumerary
unfunded posts. Within Education & Learning there is a projected overspend of £1.6m, most
of which relates to SEND management and home to school transport.
2.35 Resident Services are forecasting an overspend of £3.0m for the financial year. £1.7m of the
overspend relates to costs associated with Temporary Accommodation. The correlation can be
seen when reviewing the indicator measuring the number of households in temporary

Page 54
accommodation; towards the end of 2020-21 the numbers increased and exceeded the target,
and whilst the targets for 2021-22 have been reset to allow for this increase, the numbers
continue to grow, with a 10% increase compared to the same period last year. The most
recently published DLUHC figures for London reflecting occupations levels at the end of
December report Lambeth as having the sixth highest occupation levels in London with 2,767
households in occupation of temporary accommodation.
2.36 There is an underspend in Environment & Streetscene predominantly due to overachievement
of parking income. An overspend of £0.580m in Residents Experience & Digital is caused by
additional staffing costs in clearing Covid-19 backlogs in Registrars, a slow recovery in
Libraries income after Covid and staffing overspends within ICT. .
2.37 Sustainable Growth and Opportunity are forecasting a slight pressure of £0.062m due to a
shortfall in building control and planning income. There will be a significant level of expenditure
on supporting businesses within the Borough, however this is expected to be funded from
Central Government Grants and previously agreed NCIL funding.
2.38 Finance & Investment are forecasting an overspend of £0.7m this year, mainly due agency
staff costs within Human Resources and Organisation Development and Finance and
Property.
2.39 Strategy, Communications and Legal services are forecasting an overspend of £0.304m
within Legal Services in the financial year predominantly due to additional staff to support legal
work in the Children Services area.
2021/22 Housing Revenue Account Q2 Forecast Position
2.40 There are several factors that are driving the forecast of a £8.6m overspend. Within Housing
Services there are pressures within the responsive repairs service due to the necessity of
reducing outstanding repairs jobs ahead of the new suite of repairs contracts which
commenced in July 2021. There are also pressures against the voids budget due to a targeted
reduction in voids to bring them back into rental use. The HRA’s operations are continuing to
be adversely impacted by Covid-19 and this is reflected in £1m rent losses in HRA hostels.
There is a one-off £2m investment in system upgrades and transformation work to drive future
efficiencies and value for money procurements within the HRA.
2.41 The Council is forecasting a planned use of HRA reserves for the above whilst maintaining a
grip on the future balances and reserves via the HRA Business Plan.
Table 5 – HRA Forecast Outturn 2021/22

Housing Services
Strategic Programmes
Central HRA Budgets & Technical Adjustments
TOTAL HRA

Full Year
Budget
£m

Forecast
£m

Variance
£m

63.690
15.541
(79.231)
0

72.399
18.062
(81.823)
8.638

8.709
2.521
(2.592)
8.638

2021/22 Dedicated Schools Grant Q2 Forecast Position

Page 55
2.42 At quarter 2 the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is projecting to be in a deficit of £2.6m at the
end of the financial year, to be recovered from future years DSG allocations. The main
pressure on the DSG is within the High Needs block associated with Special Education Needs
placements.
Table 6

Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG)

DSG Reserve
brought forward
Deficit 2020/21

Total DSG expenditure 2020/21

£m
(0.473)

DSG Forecast
Allocation
DSG
2021/22
spend
£m
£m
(226.975)
229.187

Projected
Deficit
2021/22
£m
2.685

2021/22 Capital Q2 Forecast Position
2.43 The approved capital budget for 2021/22 amounts to £286.7m. £34.4m has been spent by the
end of quarter 2 and £169m is forecast to be spent by the end of the year, with £117.8m
carried forward into the next financial year.
Table 7 CIP Forecast Outturn 2020/21

Directorate
Adult Social Care
Children Services
Resident Services
Sustainable Growth & Opportunity
Finance and Investment
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Approved awaiting allocation
Total

21/22
Budget
£m
0.120
1.079
88.481
78.179
7.624
67.945
43.247
286.675

21/22
Actuals
£m
0
0.011
7.510
9.057
0
7.510
0
34.449

21/22
Forecast
£m
0
0
68.781
56.924
0
43.207
0
168.912

21/22
Carry
Forward
£m
0.120
1.079
19.700
21.254
7.624
24.738
43.247
117.762

2.44 A reprofiling of budgets was carried out following the Q2 forecast position with the 2021/22
budget revised to £269.8m (excluding the Redress scheme). Appendix 1 shows the analysis of
this working CIP for the 4 years 2021/22 to 2024/25 by themes together with how this is
expected to be financed.
Capital Investment Programme
2.45 A 5-year Capital Investment Programme (CIP) spending envelope was set by the Council in
March 2020 with Cabinet allocating headline totals to themes according to priority in July 2020.
The CIP is an amalgamation of both General Fund and Housing Revenue Account capital
schemes and is analysed to show how capital investment is spread across delivery themes. It
also shows where investment is supporting the entire organisation through enabling projects.
2.46 The pandemic resulted in severe delays in delivery in 2020/21 and a significant carry forward
of funds to the current year. There is continuing work to reprofile the programme within
existing resources as well as reviewing our planned investments and developments to ensure
they meet the needs of the borough in the future.

Page 56
2.47 The size of the capital programme is limited by available resources. Over recent years, the
role of developer contributions has increased as available capital receipts continue to reduce.
The other major source of funding is borrowing which has an impact on revenue budgets as
there are on-going costs to debt servicing and the need to repay the principal over time. A
review will begin shortly on the all available resources, including validating assumptions on
developer contributions following the pandemic-related delays to development.
2.48 After the reviews on the planned programme and projected available resources are complete,
there will be an opportunity to review the thematic allocations set by Cabinet to ensure they
continue to match the ambitions the council and to bring forward any proposed changes for
budget setting in February.
Reserves Strategy and Forecast
2.49 The Reserves Strategy sets out the Council’s current approach to ensuring that the level,
purpose and planned use of its reserves are appropriate in the current financial climate. Our
overall approach is to use the financial strength of our balance sheet to help the Council
through a period of high risk caused by real terms funding reductions and economic
stagnation.
2.50 In the short term, Covid-19 has created significant cost pressures as well as delaying the
delivery of a number of agreed savings, combined with the loss of income. Whilst some of
these pressures have been met by Government grant, we will look to use reserves and
balances to fill any remaining gap whilst continuing to lobby government to fully fund our
response to the pandemic and its long term affects.
2.51 Brexit is also adversely impacting on the economy. The potential impacts of an increase in
inflation and an economic slowdown have the potential to reduce local authority revenue from
business rates, parking income, events, new homes bonus and council tax. It is therefore key
that the council is prepared and ensures that reserves provide suitable financial resilience.
2.52 Table 7 below confirms our current reserve forecast position to this financial year-end, whilst
also forecasting up to 2026. The general fund balances continue to be forecast to be
maintained at 10% of the net general fund budget. Earmarked reserves are currently not
forecast to increase over the planning period; however this will be determined by future service
need.
2.53 Similar to many boroughs, despite the covid-related pressures last year, reserves have
increased in 2020/21. There are several reasons for this:
 Compensation paid to councils for pandemic-related business rates reliefs paid in
2020/21 but repayable to the collection fund in 2021/22, required setting aside large
sums at year end.
 More than half the Covid-19 funding in 2020/21 from central government was
received in the second half of year. With less time to budget for these, it was difficult
to allocate and spend the funding, therefore sums have been set aside as
contingency to deal with the on-going impact of the pandemic in 2021/22
 The uncertainty of any central government funding for the on-going impact of the
pandemic on additional spending and income losses, means it is prudent to build
additional financial resilience whilst continuing to lobby government.
Table 9 2021/22 to 2025/26 Reserve Forecast

Page 57
Reserves

Actual
2020/21
£m
25.870
151.068
176.938
12.212
189.150

2021/22
£m
30.409
109.370
139.779
12.327
152.106

HRA Balances
HRA Reserves
HRA Balances & Reserves

10.971
17.944
28.915

Total Balances & Reserves

218.065

General Fund Balances
General Fund Reserves
Subtotal
CIL Reserve
GF Balances & Reserves

2022/23
£m
34.009
86.870
120.879
11.327
132.205

Forecast
2023/24
£m
34.509
86.124
120.633
11.827
132.460

2024/25
£m
35.009
85.755
120.764
10.827
131.591

2025/26
£m
35.509
85.755
121.264
11.577
132.841

2.603
17.944
20.547

2.603
17.944
20.547

2.603
17.944
20.547

2.603
17.944
20.547

2.603
17.944
20.547

172.653

152.752

153.006

152.138

153.388

2.54 The impact on reserves due to the business rates relief compensation has had a significant
impact on all London boroughs’ reserves to varying degrees which has reduced the
comparability of 2020/21 positions therefore it has not been included in this report.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

This report in its entirety is about the Council’s financial position and the implications for
service planning and delivery

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

The Council has a duty to maintain a balanced budget throughout the year and, accordingly,
members are required to regularly monitor the Council's financial position. In implementing the
Council’s financial strategy for 2021/22 and subsequent years, members will need to balance
the proposed level of expenditure in discretionary areas of service provision against that
required to ensure that the Council complies with its statutory duties.

4.2

Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 imposes a duty on the Council to monitor its
budgets throughout the financial year, using the same figures for reserves as were used in the
original budget calculations. The Council must take necessary appropriate action to deal with
any deterioration in the financial position revealed by the review.

4.3

The Housing Revenue Account is a ring-fenced account. Transfers to and from the account
are prescribed.

4.4

In reaching decisions on these matters, members are bound by the general principles of
administrative law. Lawful discretions must not be abused or fettered, and all relevant
considerations must be taken into account. No irrelevant considerations may be taken into
account, and any decision made must not be such that no reasonable authority, properly
directing itself, could have reached. Members must also balance the interests of service users
against those who contribute to the Council’s finances. Monies may not be expended
thriftlessly and the full resources available to the Council must be deployed to their best
advantage. Members must also act prudently and in a business-like manner at all times.

Page 58
4.5

In considering the advice of officers, and the weight to be attached to that advice, members
should have regard to the personal duties placed upon the Director of Finance (DoF) as Chief
Financial Officer. The Chief Financial Officer is required by Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972 and by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to ensure that the
Council’s budgeting, financial management, and accounting practices meet relevant statutory
and professional requirements. In the event that the Council’s overall financial position
worsens considerably during the remainder of 2021/22, the DoF will need to have regard to
the statutory obligations which are placed on her personally when deciding on any particular
actions to be recommended to Members to address her concerns.

4.6

This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 17 May 2021 and the
necessary 28 clear days’ notice has been given. The report will be published for five clear
days before the decision is considered by Cabinet. Should it be approved, and following the
publication of the Cabinet minutes, a further period of five clear days, the call-in period, must
then elapse before the decision can be implemented. If the decision is called-in during this
period, it cannot be enacted until the call-in has been considered and resolved.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

We are committed to working with our communities so that they can help themselves and be
more resilient to the changes in local services. Also, we are determined to talk to communities
about the tough choices we have to take as the money we receive from Central Government
continues to reduce.

5.2

The current funding gap is expected to be met through changes to fees and charges which will
carry out any required consultation before individual proposals are implemented.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

None for the purposes of this report.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

This report is the beginning of the annual budget setting process and presents the key
headlines from the prior year and sets out the ongoing or new pressures and opportunities
together with indicative funding likely to be available for the next financial year.

7.2

The report sets of the key risks for the current year and next year and its impact on the
Medium Term Finance Strategy. The report sets out the indicative funding gap and a timetable
for preparing mitigations and proposals to be considered by Cabinet before formalising the
Budget for the following year.

7.3

No new savings have been proposed.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

None for the purposes of this report.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental

Page 59
9.1

None for the purpose of this report, although the environmental impact of particular proposals
will be considered as part of the budget process.

9.2

Health
None for the purpose of this report.

9.3

Corporate Parenting
None for the purpose of this report.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
None for the purpose of this report.

9.5

Responsible Procurement
None for the purpose of this report.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 The changes to the MTFS will inform the financial planning in preparation for the 2021-26
Medium Term Financial Strategy and the Budget for 2022/23.

Page 60
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Claire Holland
Leader
Councillor Andy Wilson
Cabinet Member
Andrew Travers,
Chief Executive
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director
Andrew Pavlou,
Principal Lawyer
Governance
Sarah Keeble Democratic
Services Officer

Lambeth Directorate
Leader of the Council
Cabinet Member for Finance
and Performance
Chief Executive
Finance and Investment
Finance and Investment/
Finance and Property
Legal and Governance

Legal and Governance
Democratic Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

16/11/21

18/11/21

16/11/21

18/11/21

16/11/21

17/11/21

15/11/21

16/11/21

15/11/21

17/11/21

19/10/21

20/10/21

12/11/21

15/11/21

Comments in
paragraph:

Throughout

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

17.05.21
01.12.21
01.12.21
No
Yes
17.05.21
Financial
Revenue & Capital Budget 2021/22 to 2024/25
July Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy
Report
Appendix 1 - Capital Investment Programme
2021/22 to 2024/25

Page 61
Appendix 1 – Capital Investment Programme 2021/22 to 2024/25

Cabinet Portfolio

Theme

2021/22
Budget
£m

2022/23
Budget
£m

2023-2025
Budget
£m

4 Year
Total
£m

1.250

0.050

0.100

1.400

General Fund Capital Investment
Children and Young
People

Children's Services
Schools

19.779

11.479

-

31.258

Equalities & Culture

Archive

5.322

4.000

-

9.322

Brockwell Hall Restoration

3.311

2.250

-

5.561

Cemeteries

6.611

1.966

1.301

9.878

Libraries
Parks
Digital Transformation

1.812
3.819

0.244
1.657

0.392
2.500

2.448
7.975

7.722

4.000

7.500

19.222

Facilities Management

2.063

1.000

3.485

6.548

ICT Infrastructure

2.872

2.061

7.620

12.552

YNTH residual

0.683

-

-

0.683

Coburg Crescent

6.570

-

-

6.570

Housing Adaptations

5.150

-

-

5.150

Primary Care Contribution

2.000

-

-

2.000

Housing and
Homelessness

Housing Grounds Maintenance

0.733

-

-

0.733

TA Procurement Strategy

2.437

1.000

2.000

5.437

Planning, Investment &
New Homes

114-118 Lower Marsh

3.317

2.600

-

5.917

15.872

11.149

7.005

34.026

11.469

8.964

12.540

32.973

0.183

1.705

-

1.888

14.123

-

-

14.123

0.821

-

-

0.821

15.441

4.788

8.181

28.410

4.830

4.835

11.276

20.941

1.040
1.500
17.916

0.100
13.000

0.450
9.166

1.590
1.500
40.082

9.112

3.863

-

12.975

3.089

2.400

4.800

10.289

4.062

0.670

2.157

6.889

Communities

0.930

-

-

0.930

VCS Buildings

2.110

0.867

0.950

3.927

-

-

(0.996)

(0.996)

177.948

84.649

Finance and
Performance

Health and Social Care

Estate Regeneration
Economic infrastructure investment,
incl. affordable housing &
workspace
Site Acquisition residual
Somerleyton Road
Town Centre Development

Sustainable Transport,
Environment and Clean
Air

Energy, flood prevention & climate
change response infrastructure
Highways Improvement Programme
Parking
Public Protection
Sustainable Transport/Public Realm
Waste and Recycling

Voluntary Sector and
Leisure

Waterloo & South Bank Economic
Recovery: public realm investment
Brixton Rec Refurbishment

General contingencies (including overprogramming to be
managed down over the life of the programme)
General Fund Capital Investment Total

80.426 343.023

Page 62
2021/22
Budget
£m

2022/23
Budget
£m

2023-2025
Budget
£m

4 Year
Total
£m

31.896

-

-

31.896

25.094

11.700

49.406

86.200

66.712

44.304

88.200 199.216

Total Capital Investment Programme

301.649

140.653

218.032 660.334

Indicative funding:
Grants
S106/CIL
RTB 1-4-1 Receipts
Capital Receipts
Other Internal Resources
HRA Resources (MRR, s20 and HRA reserve)
Borrowing
Funding total

51.560
32.224
1.268
17.166
9.682
37.751
151.997
301.649

18.103
26.901
6.097
2.616
37.751
49.186
140.653

4.632
67.052
7.700
3.997
75.585
59.065
218.032

Cabinet Portfolio

Theme

Other General Fund Capital Expenditure
Finance and
Performance
Planning, Investment &
New Homes

Redress Scheme Capitalised
Payments
RTB Buybacks

HRA Capital Investment
Housing and
HRA Capital Programme
Homelessness

74.295
126.177
1.268
30.964
16.295
151.087
260.248
660.334

Page 63

Agenda Item 5

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 10 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Benefits and Welfare Support
Wards: All
Portfolio: Councillor Andrew Wilson, Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic Director for Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Tim Hillman-Brown, Head of Revenue and Benefits, Resident
Experience and Digital, 020 7926 5297, thillman-brown@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report aims to breakdown how support for residents such as Housing Benefit, Council Tax Support
and Universal Credit, work across the Council. Data is also provided to detail performance of the
processing of Housing Benefits, Council Tax Support and other welfare support. It also considers the
relationship between the council and government and associated information flows. Detail is also
provided with regard to external organisations funded by the Council to provide support for those
receiving welfare support.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

To note the contents of the paper and the activities being taken across the Council to support
some of our most vulnerable residents.

Page 64
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

Over the course of the pandemic, demand for welfare support in the borough has increased
significantly. More and more residents needed help with their day to day living expenses as well as
their housing costs. Universal Credit (UC) recipients increased from c23,600 in January 2020 to
c40,500 in September 2021.

1.2

The number of residents claiming Council Tax Support (CTS) and Housing Benefit (HB) also
increased, but these were substantially lower. An increase of only 1,000 claims were recorded due
to UC replacing Housing Benefit for working age residents and the rules of the Council’s Council
Tax Support scheme. Our current HB caseload is 22,004 households. Of these- 47% are Council
stock, 40% Registered Social Landlords and 13% Private sector. Currently, CTS helps 23,121
households to meet their Council Tax costs.

1.3

Throughout the pandemic, increased Discretionary Housing Payment (DHP) and Emergency
Support Scheme (ESS) budgets, as well as new initiatives, such as Test and Trace Support
Payments and Lambeth Stay Home Support Payment, were managed hand in hand with the
processing of Housing Benefit and Council tax support in order to streamline processing activity
and optimise economies of scale. This also allowed optimised use of data held within Revenue and
Benefits core systems resulting in shortening customer journeys and facilitating quicker turnaround
of requests for help. It has been a very challenging time for the Benefits Service. However, our
response has been robust, resilient and responsive.

1.4

An updated Financial Resilience Strategy to replace the Lambeth Financial Resilience Strategy
(2016-2019) was in the process of agreement pre-Covid-19, but has been held back for revision in
light of the pandemic and the emerging economic impacts. The draft strategy has now been
refreshed and will be progressed for formal agreement in early 2022.

1.5

Support for residents needing help to meet their living costs is delivered by the Economic Inclusion
Team, Every Pound Counts, Revenue and Benefits and the Housing’s Welfare Solutions Team. In
addition, the Covid Response Team also provided support to residents over the course of the
pandemic.

1.6

These are supported by contracts with external third sector organisations including Citizens Advice
Lambeth and Merton (CAML), St Mungo’s, IncomeMax, Turn2Us, and Centre70.

1.7

How these various moving parts work to support our residents is detailed throughout this paper.

1.8
Borough Plan Objectives
Sustainable growth: a growing economy that everyone benefits from.
Resilient communities: communities that are thriving and connected.
Independence: people have support to live as well and independently as they
can
Place: Lambeth is a place people want to live, work, and invest.
Table 1

Relevant?
Y
Y
Y
Y

Page 65
2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1
2.2

Revenue and Benefits
Revenue and Benefits manage all aspects of the processing of CTS and HB claims. In addition,
Concessionary Fares, DHP, Discretionary Council Tax Support payments (DCTS), ESS payments
and support for those self-isolating due to the pandemic, are also processed by this team. The
average time to process Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support claims and changes is currently
9.76 days. This breaks down as 16.07 days for new claims and 9.03 days for changes in
circumstance.
For comparison, the table below details performance in the Right Time Indicator for a number of
councils in London. Data is year to date i.e., October 2021. Right Time is a combination of all
processing activity and is the only directly comparable indicator for speed of processing across all
councils.
LA name
Lambeth
Southwark
Barking and Dagenham
Greenwich
Ealing
Lewisham

Right Time performance
8.83 days
6.05 days
8.03 days
11.09 days
14.50 days
4.15 days

Table 2
Lambeth is comparable with other LAs for average processing speed, meaning almost all residents
receive a responsive service when making a new claim or reporting a change in circumstances.
Improvements in technology as well as greater levels of automation are expected to drive down
processing times substantially in 2022/23.
2.3

Currently, the working age Housing Benefit caseload is transitioning to Universal Credit (UC). This
can create confusion, especially for residents who have previously received HB but now need to
apply for UC instead. The requirement to apply for UC is a key reason why some HB claims are
declined. The DWP have, most recently, said they expect most working age HB recipients to
migrate to UC by 2024. CTS claims are most likely to be declined due to features of our scheme,
like the £5 minimum payment and non-dependent deductions. The table below compares total
claims received to date in 2021/22 with the number of claims which were unsuccessful.
Total claim numbers
(HB / CTS)
8833
Table 3

Number
unsuccessful
602

% Where benefit
awarded
93%

% Where benefit not
awarded
7%

Claims may be unsuccessful for many reasons including:
 Supporting documents not supplied
 Excess income
 No recourse to public funds
 Unfamiliar with welfare system (UC should have been claimed instead of HB)
The overall number of claims is comparatively high but reflective of the high levels of churn in the
borough. This is especially true given caseload numbers have only increased by 1,000 over
2020/21 and 2021/22.

Page 66
2.4

Housing Benefit regulations are owned by the DWP; pension age CTS regulations are owned by
DLUHC whilst the CTS scheme for working age is owned by the Council. This means we have very
little discretion in how we deliver HB processing activity and pension age CTS, but complete
control over our CTS scheme. The claim process is broadly similar for both and is outlined below.
The same process applies to DHP or DCTS payments as well.

Supporting evidence
provided
•DWP
•Resident
•3rd Party
•Call Centre

•Resident
•DWP / HMRC
•Landlord
•3rd Party

•Benefits
Assessment Team
•Housing Team

Claim made

Decision made

Where a decision made by the Assessment team is disputed, then the following process is used:

Revised decision
made
•Resident
•Advocate
•Councillor/MP

•Benefits Team
•Appeals Team
•Complaints team

Revision requested/
Complaint or ME
made

•Appeal or Valuation
Tribunal/
Ombudsman
(Government)
•Binding decision
upon the Council
Appeal/Ombudsman

The table below details the number of benefit assessment complaints, MEs and appeals received
so far in 2021/22 and their outcomes.
Classification
Local resolution
Final review
Appeal
ME
Ombudsman
Table 4

Volume
127
13
3
100
2

Upheld
31
1
1
N/A
0

% Upheld
24%
8%
33%
N/A
0%

Most complaints relate to HB (43%), with DHP (16%) and CTS (12%) completing the top three.

Page 67
Of the 127 local resolution complaints received, only 13 were escalated to final review and only
one of these was upheld.
This shows fewer than 1% of complaint responses have been overturned. This is positive and
means complaints are being well managed within the service.
We would like to reduce the number of complaints we receive further and are working to do this by:
 Using complaints to make process changes where appropriate. (An example would be
increasing resource to take claims over the phone following a complaint about delays in
being able to claim this way.)
 Using data gathered to inform upskilling training required by the processing team. (An
example would be letter writing skills training to make letters clearer when processing
changes notified by DWP.)
 Using complaints to help improve our technology. (An example of this would be using data
from complaints to make our online forms more user friendly and fix perceived glitches in
our systems.)
The overall number of opened complaints and appeal cases this financial year should be
considered against the processing of HB and CTS 193,000 work items in the same period. In
addition, where complaints are upheld, this is often as a result of provision of additional information
which was not available at the time of the original decision.
2.5

The Covid situation (furlough and lockdown) in tandem with increasing pressure on households,
due to rising fuel and food costs, as well reductions to UC, will inevitably make it more difficult to
reduce the number of complaints and MEs submitted in respect of Benefits. We are not able to
give all residents the level of financial support they would like, which in turn will drive additional
complaints and MEs. In order to mitigate this, there is much work taking place to improve
processing of the Housing Benefit team’s work, including:







Automation of the less complex workflows to free up officer time to help our more
vulnerable residents or focus on more complex cases. This will include some new claims
and changes and will significantly reduce the time most residents wait for their new claim or
change in circumstances to be processed.
Better access to claim level information and updates through our Customer Portal so our
customers can access more services and information at the same time.
Improved ease of claiming CTS when making a UC claim.
Changes to CTS scheme to make it significantly more generous. (Ask initiated by Cllr
Wilson)
Additional ESS funding through Household Support Payment scheme and widening of the
scheme moving forward to include easier access to fuel and food support.

The specific changes proposed for the CTS scheme are;





Option 1 – removing the 20% liability. This would ensure a resident who isn’t in a protected
groups CTS is calculated based on100% of their liability as opposed to the current 80%.
Option 2 – removing this minimum weekly payment. This would ensure households claiming
CTS who would be entitled to less than £5 a week would receive support. Currently all awards
of less than £5.00 a week are deemed to be nil. This will help those termed as ‘just about
managing’.
Option 3 and 4 – removing the non-dependant deductions added in 2018. This will ensure
those on low incomes with disabilities and non-dependents will receive extra help with their

Page 68



CTS. It also removes the burden on low-income non-dependents to contribute to council tax
costs.
Option 5 – reducing the excess income taper to 20%. This would ensure more of working
resident’s income from work would be retained by them. This combined with option 2 will
mean many residents in low paid work will receive help with their council tax costs as well as
be better incentivised to take on more hours or take on work.

These proposed changes will deliver additional support to some of our most financially vulnerable
residents as well as reducing debt and improving wellbeing. Residents who have been paying
some or all of their council tax will have increased spending power which could benefit the local
economy. Those who would otherwise have council tax debt will not have the worry of that debt. In
addition, it will allow the council to focus revenue collection work on those who can pay but chose
not to. This because the collection process for CTS recipients is a soft process with focus on
contact and debt support as well as income collection and as such is more time consuming from an
administration perspective.

2.6

Dataflows from government

2.7

Over the last five years, DWP have increased the dataflows to Local Authorities. We now receive
between 42% and 46% of our work directly and electronically from either DWP, Pensions Service,
or HMRC. In 2020/21 we received 224,002 pieces of information to process from Government. In
addition, DWP have asked Local Authorities to step up checking of claim level data by sending
monthly lists of cases to be reviewed based on their own risk scoring algorithms. This work is
mandatory and sits outside of the dataflows discussed above. Claim level data reporting on
Lambeth performance in terms of processing is fed back to DWP through our monthly Single
Housing Benefit Extract return. New burdens funding is awarded to meet some of the costs of this
work and would be withdrawn if acceptable performance is not delivered.

2.8

The increasing dataflows from Government have caused confusion for some of our residents as
they are often unclear why their support is changing. In the past, most changes were driven by the
residents themselves. However now, information comes directly from Government with generic
reason codes thus making it difficult to tell our residents exactly why their HB or CTS have
changed. This can be frustrating and leads to complaints and traffic to our call centre. Requests for
greater clarity of reasons for change, as well as more transparency, have been requested both
directly with DWP and through London Councils via the Housing Benefits Managers forum.

2.9

Initially, due to COVID, the increased workload from DWP was simple to manage, as Revenue &
Benefits use a scalable resilience service to manage increases in workload. So as lockdown
began, this was flexed to facilitate management of increased claim volumes, increased ESS and
DHP budgets and extra CTS payments. By the time Test and Trace and Lambeth Stay Home
Support payments needed to be processed, capacity through this resilience arrangement was
exhausted due to demand from LAs outstripping supply. Agency staff with the requisite skillset to
process HB and CTS are also very limited in terms of availability. This put further pressure on the
Benefits Team and needed careful workflow management to make sure new claims and significant
changes are processed as priority. Work, where changes have minimal impact on the support
received by residents, is managed as a lower priority. This includes the tens of thousands of
notices received concerning the removal of the UC £20 uplift. In part, the increasing workload has
impacted some of the more complex cases, where processing times have been suboptimal. To
mitigate this moving forward, new reports have been created enabling managers to focus on cases
which are not being resolved quickly. This is intended to ensure complex cases receive appropriate

Page 69
attention and outliers can be managed effectively. In turn, we expect that to result in a reduction in
cases moving to ME.
2.10 The next section of this paper looks at support for welfare dependent residents either provided by
the Council or commissioned by the Council for delivery by third parties.

2.11 Cross Council Support for welfare recipients
2.12 IncomeMax
2.13 Housing Rents team have been working with IncomeMax (IM) for just over fourteen months. They
have referred a total of 516 tenants- 328 of whom have been provided with support. IM will meet
with tenants to identify ways to increase income, reduce bills and deal with any problem debts.
Potential new income has been identified for 315 of those households (96%) with £164,709
confirmed so far. When we do the referrals to IM, they will make several attempts to contact the
tenant, but many of them do not engage or decline the offer of help.
2.14 The income generated is usually welfare benefits related and they are often able to secure
backdating.
2.15 IncomeMax are funded by British Gas Energy Trust and are resourced to provide the service to the
Council free of charge.
2.16 Turn2Us
2.17 As part of offering additional support to our residents, Homeownership & Rents has recently
partnered with turn2Us benefit calculator on the housing online portal. The Benefits Calculator takes
less than 10 minutes to complete and it will tell residents which means-tested benefits you may be
entitled to, including tax credits. The Grants Search can help residents look for funds that might be
able to give them a grant or other types of help. Turn2Us have been fighting UK poverty since 1897.
This service is provided free of charge.
2.18 Since the above service went live in October, Turn2us have received 67 completed applications.
There are also 124 pending applications
2.19 Centre70 Advice Service via Housing
2.20 The Centre70 contract held by the Housing team offers an advice service providing tenancy
sustainment, housing-related money advice and debt services to Welfare Reform affected (i.e., those
affected by the Spare Room Subsidy and Benefit Cap). The service supports Lambeth council
tenants, temporary accommodation customers, as well as residents at risk of eviction. It assists
residents who have debts or are struggling to afford everyday expenses due to a reduction to their
benefits. The service forms part of the overall provision of debt and money advice in the Borough
funded by the Council. This contract continues to deliver outcomes within the Borough Plan and the
Financial Resilience Strategy, as well as preventing homelessness as directed by the Homeless
Reduction Act.
2.21 Prior to the closure of the Council’s offices in March 2020 (due to COVID), Centre70 officers operated
a five days a week, face to face appointment-based service from the Civic Centre, which later
changed to telephone appointments only. However, with COVID related restrictions reducing,

Page 70
Centre70 officers will return to the Civic Centre in some capacity to provide a physical presence for
Lambeth residents in due course.

2.22 This contract operates within the financial year and has been extended continually due to its strong
performance and numerous outcomes generated for Lambeth residents. The contract cost is
£93,650 per annum split between Resident Services (paying £40,000) and Home Ownership and
Rents (paying £53,650).
As we are currently halfway through this financial year, figures are somewhat partial. For ease of
reference, please see below figures for last financial year- 6 April 2020 to 4 April 2021, which provide
a better overview of the contract.






150 residents were referred for grant support e.g., white goods etc; with 33 grants awarded
totalling a value £13,250
112 residents have obtained support via Water Help scheme
87 residents obtained support via Warm Home discount- this scheme is where residents on
low income are supported with £140 off their electricity bill for the winter season
54 successful outcomes on behalf of Lambeth residents, resulting in a total value of
£211,851.62 of additional income.
572 Centre70 appointments took place last financial year

Volumes and awards are on similar trajectory for 2021/22.
2.23 St Mungo’s (Workwise) Service
2.24 St Mungo’s Workwise Service provides employment and training for council tenants, customers in
temporary accommodation and residents at risk of eviction- all of whom, are in receipt of benefits
and adversely affected by welfare reforms (Spare Room Subsidy, Benefit Cap and Universal Credit).
At the start of this financial year (2021/22), the service was extended to assist those who have been
furloughed or lost their jobs because of COVID. This service contributes to the Council’s aims of
preventing homelessness by sustaining tenancies and reducing dependency on benefits through
continuous employment. It has been in place since 2015 and has helped to sustain tenancies,
prevent evictions and reduce the risk of homelessness to a large proportion of households affected
by welfare reforms.
2.25 Two full time work coordinators from St Mungo’s are co-located within the Housing Support Team.
This partnership arrangement allows Lambeth to utilise St Mungo’s voluntary sector networks to
access additional support for Lambeth residents. Prior to the closure of the Council’s offices in March
2020 (due to COVID,) St Mungo’s staff operated a face-to-face appointment-based service from the
Civic Centre, later changing to telephone appointments during the pandemic. However, with COVID
related restrictions reducing, officers will return to the Civic Centre in some capacity to provide face
to face employment support for residents.
2.26 The KPIs for this contract are as follows.








To support up to 150 households deemed vulnerable and in need of sustained employment
85 jobs opportunities created or sourced for tenants on the project
25 Volunteering opportunities created or sourced for tenants on the project
25 training/upskilling opportunities created or sourced for tenants on the project
To secure 5 Paid Work Placements
Overall project to mitigate the impact of the Benefit Cap by 30%
100% tenancy sustainment for every tenant registered on the project

Page 71

2.27 The key achievements of the Workwise Project since 2015 are:







959 clients attended initial appointment and registered with the service
419 clients supported into full time employment
507 clients improved their income
206 clients supported with obtaining a work placements or volunteering opportunities
198 supported with obtaining a qualification
100% of tenancies sustained for clients engaging with the service

2.28 In this financial year to date, the Workwise contract has supported 30 Lambeth residents into
employment. This represents a good outcome, especially when considering the downturn in the
employment market during the last 18 months due to the pandemic.
2.29 This contract operates within the financial year and has been extended continually due to its strong
performance and employment related outcomes generated for Lambeth residents. The contract cost
to the Council is £100,000 per annum and comes out of the Home Ownership and Rents budget.
2.30 New Partnership with Lightning Social Ventures
2.31 We are working with https://www.lightningreach.org/, a Tech for good start-up developing a platform
which aims to enable people in financial hardship to apply for multiple sources of support through a
single portal - whilst enabling grant making organisations to reduce paperwork and streamline their
process. Lightning has been working with a number of partner charities including Turn2us,
Smallwood Trust and The Royal British Legion, and have won multiple social impact awards since
they were founded in the midst of the pandemic. This will initially be a pilot at no cost to the council.
2.32 Soft launch will commence in December 2021.
2.33 Every Pound Counts
2.34 Every Pound Counts is the Council’s in-house specialist welfare benefits advice service. The service
is based in Adults and Health and is for vulnerable ill/ disabled Lambeth residents. The service
prioritises cases which involve prevention of homelessness, reducing income poverty, safeguarding
concerns, supporting residents needing to move into or from care settings or finance care
packages. Referrals received are triaged to make sure the service only works with people with
complex support needs. The highest level of referrals come from adult social care and mental health
services and the Council’s financial assessment team, but any service supporting vulnerable
residents can refer. Feedback from social care staff suggest the service is highly valued for its
specialist knowledge, how quickly it identifies the issues and precision of advice. Feedback from
service users suggests the service is valued for its understanding approach. Advice is delivered
through a range of channels: phone, face to face appointments, including via outreach services in
mental health services and home visits. The service provides briefings and training to Council and
commissioned services so they can better identify and support residents who are financially
excluded.
2.35 The service provides income maximisation by identifying underassessed benefits and providing the
casework support required to access the additional benefit income; this includes representation with
appeals and tribunals. Residents helped are either unaware of extra support they can access or
struggle to negotiate the complexities of the benefit system; many present in crisis and some lack
capacity to manage their own finances. The service doesn’t provide debt advice. Where customers

Page 72
have problematic debt, the service explores where backdating benefit entitlements can reduce debt
and where setting up direct payments from DWP benefits can provide effective debt management.
2.36 The service supports low income ill/ disabled residents because they are more likely to be affected
by higher rates of poverty whilst having a higher cost of living and being statistically more likely to
be underclaiming benefits. The team liaises nationally and locally with DWP to share the learning
from the lived experiences of those helped by identifying system errors and failings that can be
tackled to improve effectiveness of support provided.
2.37 Every Pound Counts receives c1,000 referrals annually and achieves income gains of an average
£5,200 annually for residents identified as underclaiming welfare support. In 2020/21 a total £5m
was delivered in terms of additional benefit for some of our most vulnerable residents.
2.38 Through this work value is added by:
 Reductions in health inequalities linked to income inequalities
 Improved health and financial wellbeing
 Lower levels of debt
 Reduced need for healthcare interventions
 Helps finance personal care and specialist housing provision
2.39 Demand is driven by national welfare reform agenda due to reductions in support, increased
complexity, and more stringent and frequent assessments. These changes often impact more
severely on sick and disabled working age residents.
2.40 Core Advice Contracted Services with the Economic Inclusion Team.
2.41 Core advice relates to services provided by Citizens Advice Merton & Lambeth (CAML), Centre 70
and Brixton Advice Centre, and the Advice Line also provided by CAML.
2.42 This financial year has seen continued high demand for advice services for all three commissioned
providers. In quarter two, 1,298 residents received advice from commissioned core advice services,
with 490 receiving individual casework support. Queries continue to be complex and multiple issues
are covered in appointments including debt, benefits, housing, and employment issues. In Q2, 1,176
residents asked for support or information in relation to benefits or debt, although many also had
additional queries relating to housing or employment. Residents from a Black background continue
to access advice at disproportionately high rates – 47% of advice seekers identified as Black versus
24% of overall Lambeth residents. Single people and lone parents are also seeking advice at higher
rates than other family types – 75% of advice seekers were single or lone parents.
2.43 Waiting times for advice appointments are still longer than average due to demand. Most residents
can access triage or one-off advice at the first or second attempt but must wait 3-4 weeks for a oneto-one appointment. This is down somewhat from last year’s peak waits of 4-6 weeks but is still a
longer wait time than in pre-COVID days. The telephone advice line provided by Citizens Advice is
similarly continuing to operate at a very high capacity- only 45% of calls are answered due to the
level of demand. In Q2, 10,265 residents phoned the service for advice, largely about benefits and
debt. In September, a new freephone number was introduced.
2.44 Reasons for contacting the advice agencies quarter two can be seen below:

Page 73
Reasons for Seeking Advice
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

744

432

445

45

122

48

72

122

161

2.45 Breakdown of the types of support residents received from the Agencies during quarter 2 are:

2.46 The Advice Line answers 760 calls a month on average in addition to 105 online enquiries.
2.47 The advice agencies have baseline targets for service delivery, which is 880 residents offered advice
and 750 residents offered casework per annum, per organisation. Due to the unprecedented demand
for services in light of the pandemic however, these targets have been met and exceeded within the
first two quarters of 2020-21.
2.48 Advice agencies submit monitoring data quarterly, including demographic information and a record
of the types of service offered to residents (e.g. casework, information, referral to other specialist
agencies). We are not aware of any formal complaints against the advice agencies, although we are
aware that residents are disappointed by the current long wait times for appointments.
2.49 Citizens Advice Merton and Lambeth (CAML) have highlighted that they are experiencing a rise in
non-attendance for appointments, which may be related to lengthening wait times between initial
contact and appointment. CAML have therefore, introduced SMS and email appointment reminders
a week ahead of appointment date, which has begun to reduce non-attendance. Demand for faceto-face support is rising and we expect that some of this need will be met by the new advice sessions

Page 74
beginning in Health and Wellbeing hubs, including the Wellbeing Bus, from January 2022. CAML will
provide 5 days per week of advice sessions, rotating between different hubs, with a mix of drop-in
and pre-booked sessions. Some of these sessions will emphasise fuel poverty remediation.
2.50 In recent months CAML have observed a rise in requests for form filling support and have introduced
a form filling service available one day a week based in their Mitcham Office. Demand from Lambeth
residents has been higher than expected, so a second volunteer has been trained to deliver this
support. Some examples of form support requests include Blue Badge, Medical Assessments, Bus
Passes, and Thames Watersure Applications.
2.51 Benefits-related form filling for vulnerable residents was previously available through the DWP
visiting service, but this was stopped during lockdown and has not been reinstated. Some form-filling
for vulnerable residents is available through Every Pound Counts, but due to current demand, the
service is prioritising casework over form filling.
2.52 Advice Service Review and Future Commissioning
2.53 A comprehensive review of advice services in the Borough has begun, undertaken by Renaisi. This
review will look at the scale and scope of advice services accessible to residents, including those
not funded by the Council. The review will benchmark our advice provision against that of other areas
and give us a clearer view of what a ‘good’ measure of a quality advice service looks like. The Advice
Services review will also inform revised KPIs for future contracting, both in terms of volume and
quality measures.
2.54 A draft report will be produced by Renaisi in December 2021. A survey of service users, and a virtual
focus group is planned for January 2022 to sense check the conclusions and recommendations from
the report, and garner further feedback and input from residents before the report is finalised. Once
complete, the review will inform a new three-year commissioning round for core advice services
funded from EI budgets. As advised by procurement colleagues, current core advice contracts with
CAML, Centre 70, and Brixton Advice Centre will be extended to September 2022 to ensure
continuity of service throughout procurement and contracting.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Payments are met by subsidy
funding from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and the Revenue Support Grant, New
Burdens funding and administration subsidy funding from the (DWP) and Department for Levelling
Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC). Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support payments are
expected to total £180m in 2021/22. DLUHC meet the costs of administering support.

3.2

£536,650 is spent annually commissioning support for vulnerable residents from the third sector
and other welfare solutions partners. The spend breaks down as shown in the table below;
Supplier
CAML
Centre 70
Brixton Advice Centre
Adviceline (CAB)
Centre70
St Mungo’s
Total
Table 5

Service
Core Advice
Core Advice
Core Advice
Core Advice
Housing
Housing

Annual value (£)
£86,000
£82,000
£82,000
£93,000
£93,650
£100,000
£536,650

Page 75
4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no specific legal comments arising from this report

4.2

There are no additional comments from Democratic Services

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Not applicable

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Although there are no direct risks arising from this report there are associated risks of not
delivering support for residents who are in the welfare support system.

6.2

The main risks that are mitigated by the support described in the paper are:
Table 6 – Risk Register

Item

Risk

Likelihood Impact Score

1

Homelessness and additional
pressure on Lambeth
Homelessness services.

3

4

12

2

Reduced financial security and
increased debt for low income
or vulnerable households

4

4

16

3

Worsening health and health
inequality

4

4

16

Control Measures
Working with tenants at
private sector renters at
risk of homeless reduces
overall homelessness in
the borough
All financial resilience
activity across the Council
helps mitigate this risk
Income maximisation
activity helps mitigate this
risk

Key
Likelihood
Impact

Very Likely = 4
Major = 8

Likely = 3
Serious = 4

Unlikely = 2
Significant = 2

Very Unlikely = 1
Minor = 1

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

Not applicable. This report details multiple activities which have all been through the EQIA process
either when changes occur (CTS scheme changes) or as a part of the procurement process.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Not applicable

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Environmental
Not applicable

9.2

Health
Not applicable.

Page 76

9.3

Corporate Parenting
This report does include any information regarding corporate parenting however it is probable care
leavers under the age of 25 interact with some or all of the services described.

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
Not applicable

9.5

Responsible Procurement
Not applicable

9.6

Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
Not applicable

9.7

Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
Not applicable

9.8

Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
Not applicable

9.9

Single Use Plastics
Not applicable

Positive Health and Wellbeing
9.10 Not applicable
Other Offers (Innovation)
9.11 Not applicable

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable

Page 77
AUDIT TRAIL

Name and Position/Title
Councillor Andrew Wilson
Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic
Director
Andrew Ramsden, Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services
Jacqueline Faulkner,
Economic Inclusion
Chris Flynn

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
paragraph:

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Performance

25.11.21

26.11.21

2.5

Resident Services

25.11.21

26.11.21

Finance and Property

25.11.21

29.11.21

3.1

Legal and Governance

25.11.21

26.11.21

4.1

Legal and Governance

25.11.21

25.11.21

Throughout

24.11.21

29.11.21

2.31 – 2.49

24.11.21

02.12.21

2.11 – 2.30

Lambeth Directorate

Sustainable Growth and
Opportunity
Resident Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

25.11.21
03.12.21
07.12.21
No
No
Not applicable
Not applicable.
Financial Resilience Strategy 2016-2019
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 79

Agenda Item 6

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 10 JANUARY 2022
Report title: Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2021/22
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Andrew Pavlou, Interim Director of Legal and Governance:
Contact for enquiries: Maria Burton, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Legal and
Governance; 020 7926 8703, mburton2@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report sets out the committee’s draft work programme, provides an update on and record of actions
or recommendations arising from previous meetings, and provides councillors with information relevant
to the management of the committee.

Finance summary
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The work
programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within Legal and
Governance.

Recommendations
1.

That the work programme as drafted and the status of actions (Appendix 1) be noted.

2.

That members agree a meeting theme/agenda items for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
meeting scheduled for 2 February 2022.

Page 80
1.

Context

1.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) is responsible for overseeing and scrutinising the
whole range of the Authority’s functions and responsibilities, as well as other public service
providers’ work and its impact on the local community. The committee’s remit extends to all
matters which impact on the economic, social and environmental wellbeing of those who live, work,
study or use services in the borough.

1.2

OSC also exercises the council’s statutory scrutiny functions in relation to health, and crime and
disorder. The committee has responsibility for the review and scrutiny of matters relating to the
planning, provision and operation of health and related services in Lambeth (and any substantial
variation thereof) in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 2012 and relevant regulations.
The committee is also the borough’s designated ‘Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee’ in
accordance with the Police and Justice Act 2006 and has responsibility for scrutinising the work of
the Safer Lambeth Partnership.

1.3

At the AGM on 21 April 2021, Council agreed the committee membership and meeting dates for
the 2021/22 municipal year. Further information can be found on the Council’s website at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=113

1.4

The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee (CSSC) established in April 2017 is continuing in
2021/22 and is scheduled to meet three times over the course of the year, a reduction in meetings
from previous years. Cllr Joshua Lindsey, the Chair of CSSC, also sits on OSC in order to ensure
coordination of work between the two bodies, eliminate any potential duplication and feed in
findings from CSSC into OSC, and vice versa, where relevant.

1.5

In addition, a new Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee (HSSC) is being established this municipal
year with the remit to scrutinise the full range of housing management services which fall under the
control of the Director of Housing, together with Private Sector Enforcement and Regulation. HSSC
is chaired by Cllr Mary Atkins, OSC Vice Chair.

2.

Proposal and Reasons

2.1

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is invited to consider its work programme at each meeting.
Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be added at relatively short notice,
planning the committee’s work programme assists in the commissioning of reports and helps to
ensure that planned work is considered in a timely manner.

2.2

The committee’s draft work programme and action monitoring table are attached at Appendix 1.
The work programme is updated following completion of any actions or recommendations arising
or timetabling of new items. Only those actions which are amber or red rated from the 2020/21
round of meetings are included. The work programme should be monitored at each meeting to
ensure that previous actions and requests have been completed in full.

2.3

Arrangements for future meetings are yet to be confirmed but suggested outline themes are set out
in the appendix to this report, taking into account the committee’s previous work and issues
identified. Members are invited to discuss and agree a meeting focus and agenda items for the
committee meeting scheduled for 2 February in discussing this item.

2.4

Scrutiny Commissions
All proposals for scrutiny commissions should be submitted to the Scrutiny Team and will be
considered by the OSC Chair and Vice Chairs in the first instance. Councillors submitting a

Page 81
proposal for a commission are asked to provide outline information using the commission scoping
template. Commissions can only be progressed when adequate resource has become available in
the Democratic Services Team. The table included in Appendix 1 summarises the status of all
current commissions.
2.5

2.6

2.7

In December 2020 OSC agreed to establish a commission on Low Traffic Neighbourhoods (LTNs)
– specifically the processes used to introduce and evaluate such emergency measures and
identifying lessons for future such situations. The commission met on 17 December 2020 to refine
its terms of reference and agree an outline work plan and has since met a further seven times,
taking evidence from the Deputy Leader of the Council (Sustainable Transport, Environment and
Clean Air) and officers regarding the emergency LTN rollout in Lambeth; considering a variety of
research papers, articles and reports on LTNs more widely; examining common themes in
objections to LTN schemes; and hearing from two university professors with specialisms in active
travel, and attitudes and behaviour change in relation to climate change initiatives. The
commission’s draft report was agreed at the October meeting and was approved, along with the
action plan, at Cabinet on 22 November 2021.
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Our Healthier South East London JHOSC
Our Healthier South East London (OHSEL) Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(JHOSC) comprises representatives of the six boroughs across South East London - the London
Boroughs of Bromley, Bexley, Lambeth, Lewisham and Southwark and the Royal Borough of
Greenwich. The Joint Committee’s role is to scrutinise health services across South East London,
in particular the proposals and consultation processes of the NHS Our Healthier South East
London programme to ensure that improved, safe and sustainable health services are delivered
across the region. The Council’s representatives are currently Cllr Marianna Masters, who is Vice
Chair of the JHOSC, and Cllr Rezina Chowdhury. The first meeting of the municipal year took
place online (informally) on 30 June 2021. Further information on the committee’s work can be
found at: https://cds.bromley.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=714 .
Lambeth Hospital JHOSC
In late 2019 a service change proposal was received from NHS Lambeth Clinical Commissioning
Group and their provider, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) regarding
the potential reconfiguration of mental health inpatient services at Lambeth Hospital; specifically
the transfer of one psychiatric intensive care unit (PICU) and four acute wards to a new facility on
the Maudsley Hospital site, located in the London Borough of Southwark. Following conversations
with commissioners and colleagues in Southwark it was decided that this proposal amounted to a
substantial reconfiguration proposal covering more than one local authority area (in accordance
with the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013) and, as such, a JHOSC has been established between the London Boroughs of
Lambeth and Southwark to scrutinise the plans.

2.8

This JHOSC held its first meeting on 6 February 2020, during which the Terms of Reference and
consultation plans were approved. Last year, the committee conducted a virtual tour of the
Lambeth Hospital site and a fly-through of Douglas Bennett House, which will be built on the
Maudsley Hospital site. In addition to the tour, information was provided on the need for change
while updates were provided on the consultation process and the timeframe for decision making.

2.9

The consultation ran from 4 March until 31 May and the JHOSC met on 28 May 2020 to consider,
and respond to, the proposals in more detail. A meeting on 30 June allowed further scrutiny, and
recommendations to be made, before the South East London Clinical Commissioning Group made

Page 82
its final decision to relocate four acute wards and the Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU) from
Lambeth Hospital to the Maudsley site. These proposals were supported by the JHOSC. However,
an additional meeting was held in January 2021 to ensure monitoring of progress. Moving
forwards, the Committee will continue to be briefed on developments informally and, if required, will
hold further meetings ahead of the opening of Douglas Bennett House in early 2023.
2.10 The Council’s representatives are Cllr Marianna Masters, the Chair, Cllr Joshua Lindsey and Cllr
Rezina Chowdhury.
Borough Plan
2.11 Lambeth’s Borough Plan sets out the outcomes and objectives that the Council is trying to achieve;
these can be a useful tool for scrutiny members in their holding to account role; and, to support the
consideration, identification, and prioritisation of work programme items. The Borough Plan is
based around five big ambitions:
a.
enable sustainable growth and investment;
b.
increase community resilience;
c.
promote care and independence by reforming services;
d.
make Lambeth a place where people want to live, work and invest; and,
e.
be passionate about equality, strengthening diversity, and delivering inclusion.
Forward Plan
2.12 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing
Board) will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which
will:
(1) Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or
(2) Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in
excess of £500,000; and/or
(3) Have a significant impact on:
(a) communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth; or
(b) wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant number of
people living or working in an area; or,
(c) communities of interest
2.13 The plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee might
add value. The Forward Plan can be found at:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RD=0&RPId=137&bcr=1

3.

Finance

3.1

There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within Legal
and Governance.

4.

Legal and Democracy

4.1

There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.

4.2

There are no further democratic implications arising from this report.

Page 83
5.

Consultation and co-production

5.1

All members of the council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in
accordance with the council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section 6).
Suggestions are also invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community
leadership role and from members of the public. The council’s website includes a form for the
submission of suggestions and for public notice questions.

6.

Risk management

6.1

None.

7.

Equalities impact assessment

7.1

An equalities impact assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

8.

Community safety

8.1

None.

9.

Organisational implications

9.1

None.

10. Timetable for implementation
10.1 See Appendix 1.

Page 84
Audit Trail
Name/Position
Councillor Liz Atkins
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director
Strategic Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
David Rose, Democratic
Services

Lambeth directorate/
department or partner

Date
Sent

Date
Received

Chair, Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC)

25/11/21

30/11/21

Finance and Investment

25/11/21

29/11/21

Legal and Governance

25/11/21

25/11/21

Legal and Governance

25/11/21

25/11/21

Comments
in para:

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential accompanying
report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

N/A
03.12.21
01.12.21
No
No
N/A
N/A
Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Lambeth Council Constitution 22.01.20
Appendix 1: OSC Work Programme 2021/22

APPENDIX 1
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2021-22 WORK PROGRAMME


7 June 2021 – Procurement / Developer Contributions

Item / topic

Aims / objectives and
recommendations
Report on performance against stated
outcomes/KPIs since the policy was
introduced and how social value
commitments are monitored/assessed.

Developer
Contributions &
Neighbourhood
CIL Delivery
Framework

To respond to the OSC
recommendation of 23.09.20 as follows:
“That further transparency is needed
regarding developer contributions. This
should include publishing details on the
Council website of where Community
Infrastructure Levy payments are
generated and spent (over the last five
years in each ward); a list of projects
funded by CIL, NCIL and S106; and the
criteria for each funding stream”

Draft deadline: 17 May
Final deadline: 25 May
Agenda publication date: 27 May

Visits

Witnesses

Genine
Whitehorne

N/A

Yasmin Ibison (Back
Thrive); Simon Hannah
(Unison); Cllr Adrian
Garden

Rob Bristow

N/A

Cllr Ben Kind

Background information

Recommendations to be
considered ahead of
Cabinet decision scheduled
for July 2021.

Page 85

Responsible
Procurement
Policy Review

Lead Officer



14 July 2021 – Health and Social Care

Item / topic

Information on the commissioning
framework; different models/types of care
homes; impact of C-19 and Brexit;
monitoring and inspection arrangements;
challenges moving forward, including for
staff, carers and service providers. This will
incorporate requested information on
Minnie Kidd House.

Lead
Officer

Visits

Fiona
Connolly /
Jane
Bowie

N/A

Witnesses

Care home providers,
including a core block
provider and a smaller
unit, with input from a
manager and care staff.
An aligned professional –
e.g. a GP or a public
health officer who’s
worked alongside the
commissioning team.
Service users and carers
Healthwatch Lambeth
Age UK Lambeth
Lambeth Keep Our NHS
Public

Draft deadline: 24 June
Final deadline: 2 July
Agenda publication date: 6 July

Background information

Page 86

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery

Aims / objectives and recommendations



12 October 2021
Item / topic

Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods
Scrutiny
Commission – Final
Report

To provide an update on the issues
covered by committee in July 2020,
with additional information on Air
Quality Reporting, the work of the
Citizens’ Assembly (including next
steps) and information/data to help
quantify the health impacts of air
pollution across Lambeth.
To provide data on road
accidents/collisions across the
borough for the last five years. To
include an explanation, with
benchmarking against other
boroughs, and details on work that is
taking place to reduce road danger,
especially for younger people.
For OSC, as the parent Committee, to
consider and agree the final report
from the LTN Scrutiny Commission
ahead of this going to Cabinet for a
response.

Draft deadline: 21 September
Final deadline: 29 September
Agenda publication date: 4 October

Lead Officer

Hannah
Jameson

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

TBC

Councillor Joanna
Reynolds

These items may be combined
or taken as two standalone
reports.

N/A

Witnesses were
interviewed during the
Commission’s evidence
gathering

Ruth Hutt
Paul
Keenlyside
Simon
Phillips
Michael
Munnelly

Maria Burton

Page 87

Climate Change
Update (including
Road Safety)

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Cllr Mary Atkins was Chair of
the Commission



16 December 2021

Item / topic

Budget

Minnie Kidd House
(for info only)

To be presented to OSC following initial
Cabinet approval. Will then go to Cabinet
and Council in the new year
To include:
 Clarity on responsibility (central
government, local government,
partners, MPs), broad overview of
the process
 Services the Council funds (e.g.
Centre 70, CAB), number of
referrals, outcomes and how these
contracts are evaluated.
 Housing benefit – statistics on
recipients, refusals, evictions
 How the complaints process works
 Comparisons with other boroughs
 Current issues: Universal Credit,
Test and Trace
At OSC on 14 July 2021, the Committee
requested:
 A report on the future use of Minnie Kidd
House, setting out care provided,
environmental issues, including work
required for the building to be compliant
with fire safety standards, and next steps,
be considered by Overview and Scrutiny
at a future committee meeting, with input
from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS
Foundation Trust.

Draft deadline: 25 November
Final deadline: 03 December
Agenda publication date: 08 December

Visits

Lead Officer

Witnesses

Christina
Thompson

N/A

Trade unions, BIDs,
Charity representatives

Natasa
Patterson

N/A

Helen Hayes MP
Centre 70/CAB
Residents
supported/affected

Jane Bowie

N/A

N/A

Background information

Page 88

Benefits

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

OSC 14 July 2021



2 February 2022

Item / topic

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Lead Officer

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

Visits

Witnesses

Background information

Employment &
Skills Strategy one
year on
Events Scrutiny
Commission 2nd
Update



Page 89

Draft deadline: 13 January
Final deadline: 21 January
Agenda publication date: 25 January

24 March 2022 – Crime and Disorder (Provisional)

Item / topic

Safer Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report
(Provisional)

Draft deadline: 4 March
Final deadline: 14 March

Aims / objectives and
recommendations

Lead Officer

Agenda publication date: 16 March

Issues for potential future scrutiny










Thames Water issues
Covid related expenditure and, subject to speaking to the Chair of Corporate Committee, work that has taken place to prevent covid support fraud
Violence affecting young people / youth violence (subject to speaking to the Chair of Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee)
Care Homes Annual Report – see minutes from 14 July 2021 OSC for details
Financial Inclusion Strategy
Waste Strategy
Resident Services contract performance
Leisure Strategy/contracts
Customer service standards

Page 90

Scrutiny Commissions
(More information on current commissions is contained in the OSC work programme report)
Title/Proposal

Status

Co-Chairs/Lead Member(s)

Maximising Benefits from Events

Concluded. Final report presented to Cabinet on 13 Jan 2020. First action plan
update Sept 2020, second update provisionally Sept 2021.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Low Traffic Neighbourhoods

In progress. Membership and scope agreed at Dec 2020 OSC; commission
meeting regularly. Final report scheduled for October 2021.

Cllr Mary Atkins

Page 91

Overview & Scrutiny Committee Action Monitoring
30 January 2019: Transport / Digital Accessibility
Item

Recommendation / Action

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

To support the work being done to explore the feasibility
of introducing a workplace parking levy in the borough and
request to be kept updated throughout the evidence
gathering and decision making process

Draft Lambeth
Transport
Strategy

That the Transport Strategy be amended to include
guidance on motorcycle parking provision and criteria for
interested residents

Accepted/
Rejected

Response
Work stream delayed due to
Covid-19

Accepted

-

To be picked up in the Kerbside
Strategy in 2021/22
November 2021: the Strategy is
currently in development

Deadline

Owner

TBC

Simon
Phillips

TBC
Simon
Phillips

RAG
rating
A
(last
update 08
November
2021)
A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Item

Council
Response to
Covid-19

Council
Response to
Covid-19

Recommendation / Action

That a focus be placed on mechanisms to support
residents experiencing food poverty in the borough

That support be maintained to residents who are required
to shield as the initial crisis period eases

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
There is significant support in
place via the council and VCS
organisations supporting
vulnerable people to access food
and other forms of support. This
has been in place since the 23rd
March and continues.
November 2021: This has now
been absorbed into business as
usual
Government Guidance has been
published which advises that for
those individuals who are
shielding currently Gov support
comes to an end from the 1st
August. The Council with other

Deadline

Ongoing

Ongoing

Owner

RAG
rating

Andrew
Travers/
Fiona
Connolly

G
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Andrew
Travers/
Fiona
Connolly

G
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Page 92

19 May 2020: Council Response to Covid-19

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

Andrew
Travers/
Neil
Euesden

A

partners will continue to support
individuals who are vulnerable
and the helpline that has been
established since COVID will
remain in place

Council
Response to
Covid-19
Council
Response to
Covid-19

That further work be done to establish how vacant space
and additional space requirements be identified and
connected to support changes in working practices in
Lambeth

Passed on to
Housing
Scrutiny SubCommittee
as within its
ToR

Neil
Euesden

G
(for OSC)

Page 93

That a review of the policy on evictions be conducted and
reported back to the committee, including a summary of
the views of key housing association partners and clarity
on the commitment that no evictions would take place
“during the pandemic”

Accepted

November 2021: Shielding for
the clinically extremely vulnerable
has now ended.
Project Work to commence to
consolidate all information
including: location, facilities
available, current usage,
associated budgets etc
In respect of tenancies, we
continue to follow Government
direction on the suspension of
new evictions until 23 August.
This means that we are not
applying for any new warrants,
and we have not rescheduled any
evictions which were cancelled
due to COVID19. As a result, we
do expect to see arrears continue
to increase on these types of
cases and also on those where
we have exhausted all avenues of
collection and warrants are the
next stage. In terms of possession
cases, we can continue with those
cases that are still being listed at
Court, and we can send through
any new applications.

16 July 2020: Budget / Climate Change
Recommendation / Action

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the importance of learning from best practice be
highlighted, in particular the emissions baseline document
produced by Bristol City Council and the organisation and
transparency of the work being done by Devon Council to
implement its climate emergency plan

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

To urge officers to ensure that the public are fully
engaged and consulted on the Citizens’ Assembly and
Low Traffic Neighbourhoods – including via a variety of
communications methods, not just online – and that such
communications be appropriately coordinated in order that
residents’ views on one can be used to inform the other.
This communications plan should be reported back to the
committee

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

Complete

Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating

Updated (August 2021)
Accepted

Accepted

The climate change programme
has, and continues, to draw on
learning and practice from other
councils, cities, and countries. As
the sector looks to accelerate
work to reach Net 0 there is a
strong emphasis on collaboration
and learning together. The
emissions report collects and
presents data consistently with
the LGA framework. It also
develops the borough-wide
analysis as recommended by
OSC.
Updated (August 2021)
The Low Traffic Neighbourhoods
programme has used a range of
communication and engagement
methods. Face to face
engagement has been carried out
when public health advice has
permitted. This will continue
throughout the consultations.
Printed materials are used as well
as online meetings and website
information.
The citizens’ assembly did
consider what action would need
to be taken to reduce transport
related emissions. The
recommendations arising from
this will be considered by the
council and partners.

G

Page 94

Item

G

Complete

Hannah
Jameson /
Paul Bates

Item

Recommendation / Action

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the elimination of Glyphosate be accelerated and
consideration be given to an opt-in (rather than opt-out)
approach

Tackling Climate
Change in Light
of Covid-19

That the committee endorses the innovative work being
done by the London Borough of Islington on heat transfer
and would like to see Lambeth explore similar approaches

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

Complete

Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating

Updated (August 2021)

Accepted

The use of glyphosate on
Lambeth’s streets, parks and
open space, and housing estates
has now ceased.
The council has begun to develop
its energy strategy and will
identify relevant low carbon
energy opportunities as part of
this work. We expect the first
phase of work, to develop the
evidence base, to be completed in
summer 2021 with options for
decarbonising heat to follow
shortly after.

G

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Nabeel
Khan

G
(last
update 11
November
2021)

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 11
November
2021)

23 September 2020: Economic Recovery
Item

Recommendation / Action

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

That targeted support is needed to assist older people
(e.g. those over 50) who are out of work, such as training
and job search skills, and a review of current provision
should be carried out to ascertain whether suppliers have
sufficient knowledge and expertise to provide effective
support to this cohort

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

That the importance of optimising local spend to generate
social impact be highlighted and that clear targets be set
for increasing the amount of spend that is retained locally

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
Those aged over 50 are identified
as a priority group in the Skills
and Employment Strategy and will
benefit from actions focused on
providing high quality employment
support and addressing wider
barriers to employment.
The Enterprise & Economy
Strategic Programme Board will
be exploring the potential to set
local spend targets through the
council’s supply chain and
through new development s106
process.
November 2021: This is being
taken forward as part of the
Council’s new Responsible
Procurement Policy update.

Oct 2021

Dec 2021

Page 95

Late 2021

Hannah
Jameson

Item
Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy
Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission Action
Plan Update

That the committee is sympathetic to small businesses
trying to remain afloat through the pandemic, as well as
minor landlords, and wishes to see the Council taking
whatever action it can to ensure rent increases do not
lead to local firms going out of business
That further transparency is needed regarding developer
contributions. This should include publishing details on the
Council website of where Community Infrastructure Levy
payments are generated and spent (over the last five
years in each ward); a list of projects funded by CIL, NCIL
and S106; and the criteria for each funding stream
That strategic approaches should be taken to maximising
5G connectivity, including working proactively with
providers to reduce the proliferation of masts

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted in
part

Accepted

Accepted

That consideration be given to widening the scope of the
Opportunity Lambeth website to ensure it better connects
residents seeking work with appropriate jobs available in
the borough
Accepted

Response
The council is not able to take any
action in relationships between
commercial landlords and
tenants. Any business needing
advice can access the support
offered through the London
Business Hub.

Report taken to OSC on 7 June

Updated (August 2021)
The council adopted its digital
strategy in March 2021 and
agreed an investment of £17m
across a range of programmes
and projects. The councils
property terms is in regular
dialogue with 5G providers in
relation to mast installations on
council property. Although not
enforceable due to the permissive
legislation round
telecommunications, the council is
writing to 5G providers to share
facilities and remove any
redundant equipment.
The feedback from the Committee
and during the development of the
Skills and Employment Strategy
has highlighted the need to
improve the user experience of
the Opportunity Lambeth website,
and to ensure it is used as a
single point of access for
promoting local job,
apprenticeship and work
experience opportunities. This will

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

N/A

Nabeel
Khan / Matt
Blades

A
(last
update 11
November
2021)

June 2021

Eleanor
Purser/
Sara Waller

G

G
March 2021

Fiona
McDermott

Oct 2021

Nabeel
Khan /
Alison May

A
(last
update 11
November
2021)

Page 96

Economic
Resilience Strategy
/ Draft Skills &
Employment
Strategy

Recommendation / Action

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Paul Bates

A
(last
update 14
November
2021)

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Andrew
Eyres /
Fiona
Connolly /
Ruth Hutt

G
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Paul Bates

A
(last
update 14
November
2021)

Deadline

be a priority for the coming six
months.
Jobs For All
Scrutiny
Commission Action
Plan Update

That the relative costs and benefits of social value
measures be calculated to ensure the focus is on those
initiatives which are proven to give rise to net positive
outcomes

Accepted

A comprehensive review of Social
Value at Lambeth Council was
carried out in January 2021. This
resulted in Management Board
approving an organisation-wide
approach to identifying,
measuring and monitoring social
value outcomes. Work is currently
underway to calculate the impact
of social value gains and prioritise
methods of deriving additional
value from contracts and
partnerships.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

That a better understanding is required regarding any
unmet social and health need due to Covid-19, together
with robust systems to monitor and address such need.

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

That the valuable coordinating role of Voluntary and
Community Sector organisations be recognised, and that
appropriate support be provided to the sector, especially
those organisations experiencing difficulties with their own
volunteers and workforce.

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Response
The Integrated Council and CCG
Health and Care Team, working
with Lambeth Together partners,
will continue to assess population
need alongside, access to care,
referrals and the take up of
services on an ongoing basis, in
order to assess unmet care
needs.
November 2021: This has been
absorbed into business as usual
The contribution of the sector is
widely recognised and
acknowledged and will continue to
be a key part of our work on
Covid-19 and vaccine. A

Ongoing

TBC

Page 97

20 October 2020: Health and Social Care

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Andrew
Eyres

G
(last
update 24
November
2021)

refreshed VCS strategy will be
confirmed in 2021 (timings TBC).

That partnership-based support mechanisms in local
communities involving stakeholders such as Primary Care
Networks and ward councillors are integral to addressing
health inequalities and delivering more integrated health
and care in Lambeth and such approaches should be
supported.

Accepted

The Thriving Communities
Model, initiated by Thriving
Stockwell, is an innovative
approach to tackling health
inequalities through developing
a thriving community in local
neighbourhoods in Lambeth. It
is an asset-based community
development process that
facilitates collaborative working
in a neighbourhood, bringing
together local residents, the
voluntary and community

December
2021

Page 98

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

Neighbourhood Alliance
developing local networks
which will include key health,
social care and VCS partners
and will actively involve ward
councillors.
November 2021: Learning
from the success of the Covid19 Food Hubs response, the
Lambeth Together
Neighbourhood & Wellbeing
Delivery Alliance (NWDA) has
supported the establishment of
three Thriving Communities in
Stockwell, North Lambeth and
HBD (Herne Hill/Tulse
Hill/Thurlow Park) and are
developing additional new
Thriving Communities in
Streatham and Vassall and
Coldharbour.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

Ongoing

Paul Bates

RAG
rating

sector (VCS), local
businesses, housing providers,
schools, local ward councillors
and the health and care
sectors. It has been key to
work in collaboration with local
ward councillors and other
elected members to integrate
with existing their local
networks and other existing
borough-wide structures like
Lambeth Made Community
and Lambeth Forum etc.

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

That the Committee be kept up to date with resident
survey data, including the Pulse survey and future
research work, as and when this becomes available.

Accepted

This is agreed in principle.
Officers will liaise further with
members regarding desired
format and timings.

Page 99

Through partnership working,
the model seeks to support
those in most need with a
holistic support for their wider
social, economic and wellbeing
needs on top of traditional
health and care services.
Additionally the NWDA
partners are exploring how to
scale this model across all
neighbourhoods in Lambeth
and developing a sustainable
business case to invest in the
infrastructure to underpin
these local resident-led
networks to deliver real health
& care impact to Lambeth
communities.
A
(last
update 14

Item

Covid-19 in
Lambeth: Lessons
Learned in Health
and Care

Recommendation / Action

That messaging regarding vulnerable residents and their
entitlements (for example, with regards to exemptions
from certain Covid-19 guidelines) be clarified.

To note and commend the report; however, to request
that the Committee is given future oversight of the
quarterly Public Health reports to Health & Wellbeing
Board.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That more transparency and communication are needed
on the necessary fiscal trade-offs inherent in actions to
tackle climate change and how to mitigate them in future.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That a whole Council approach be taken to the public
health and climate change challenge, and that the
Citizens’ Assembly informs that response.

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

That the effectiveness of the partnership with Thames
Water be monitored to ensure it results in a reduction in
flooding and improvements to the environment.

Response

Deadline

Owner

November 2021: Officers will
hold a briefing with Members on
the latest Residents’ Survey – to
be arranged
Officers will look into this in more
depth and report back.
Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

We will ensure that in future OSC
has access to these reports which
are a matter of public record as
part of the HWB board papers. It
should be noted that due to the
Covid19 response the PH
quarterly reports have not been
done for the first half of 20/21 but
we will develop an extended 2-3
quarter version and re-establish
the quarterly pattern.
This sits within the overall climate
change and sustainable growth
agenda not within public health –
but should be picked up as part of
the Citizens’ Assembly and further
development of local strategy.
Public Health are members of the
Climate Change Board and the
part of the objective of the
Citizens’ Assembly is to explore
exactly the wider issues which
cover council wide
responsibilities.
November 2021: This has now
been absorbed as a council-wide
approach
Agreed. To be aware, the
partnership is intended to reduce
the risk of surface water flooding.

RAG
rating
November
2021)

TBC

Paul Bates

Jan 2021

Ruth Hutt

A
(last
update 14
November
2021)

G

Page 100

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

Accepted/
Rejected

TBC

TBC

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Ruth Hutt /
Hannah
Jameson

G
(last
update 12
November
2021)

Hannah
Jameson

A
(last
update 10

Item

Annual Public
Health Report:
Climate Change
and Health

Public Health Grant
Allocation and
Budget Summary

That joined up working is required between the Thames
Water partnership referred to by officers and existing
ongoing dialogue between the local MP, ward councillors
and Thames Water.

To endorse the call for PrEP funding to be continued.

To consider a review of customer service approximately
three months after the reopening of the reconfigured
customer centre (potentially at the OSC meeting
scheduled for 23 March 2021).

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Accepted in
part

This does not include flooding
arising from leaks.
Officers will find out about existing
conversations. However, it should
be clear that the strategic
partnership is addressing surface
water flood risk and not flooding
arising from leaks. This is a
separate part of Thames Water
that deals with this.
Currently funded for 2020/21. No
announcement for 21/22 on
Public Health funding.
November 2021: The Spending
Review 2021 committed to
maintaining the PH grant in real
terms, and whilst the final
settlement by authority has not
been published, we are assuming
that we would be able to continue
to fund PREP from the PH grant
which was uplifted to include this
in 2021/22.
To be considered in conjunction
with second update of
Accessibility of Council Digital
Services Scrutiny Commission

Accepted in
part

Accepted

Accepted

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating
November
2021)
A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

TBC

Hannah
Jameson

April 2021

Ruth Hutt

March 2021

Gary O’Key

G

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

G
(last
update 12
November
2021)

Page 101

OSC Work
Programme

Recommendation / Action

9 December 2020: Budget / Homes for Lambeth Governance
Item
Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Recommendation / Action
That the committee notes the heavy reliance on income
generation (particularly in Resident Services) to address
the budget gap and requests further updates on how
these proposals are progressing against stated targets,

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
Appendix 4 of the Revenue and
Capital Budget to Cabinet and
Council provides the current year
fees and charges budgets and the
forecast outturn. Budget and
Performance Monitoring is

Ongoing

Item

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

including the impact of raising fees and charges on users
and the take-up of services
That the committee is concerned at the plans for a whole
Council structural review in 2022-24 and the adverse
effect this may have on service delivery, and in particular
on low paid and BAME staff. The committee therefore
requests further detail on these proposals as and when
they emerge and urges the Council leadership to consult
with and empower staff throughout the process, both via
the trade unions and directly

That a thorough options appraisal be carried out regarding
the future of the leisure contract, including consideration
of an in-house option

That the committee supports the intention to maintain an
appropriate level of reserves in order to safeguard the
Council’s viability and enable the authority to continue
effective service delivery, in particular those services
aimed at the most vulnerable, and requests further future
updates regarding the reserves position

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
reported to Cabinet on a quarterly
basis.
Work is underway to identify
possible savings, though this is at
an early stage. Further detail will
be provided to the committee in
future months as details become
clearer

A thorough options appraisal has
been completed. From the longlist of options, two emerged as
most favourable and appropriate
for Lambeth - an in-house model
and an external concessions
contract. Evaluation is underway
and this will form the core of a
Cabinet decision report which is
scheduled for Cabinet. The report
will recommended a preferred
option for leisure services delivery
post from April 2022 and then
detailed procurement reports and
an implementation plan will be
produced for later in the year.
August 2021: work is now
complete and a report is
scheduled for Cabinet
consideration in September 2021.
Section 25 of the Local
Government Act 2003 requires
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
(in Lambeth’s case the Director of
Finance) to report to the Authority
on two areas:
a)The robustness of the
estimates made for the
purpose of the calculations

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Fiona
McDermott

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

July 2021

Kevin
Crook

G

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Deadline

Ongoing

Page 102

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Recommendation / Action

Item

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Accepted/
Rejected

That the committee notes the bigger than usual lag in
capital investment spend this year due to the pandemic
and requests further updates on the capital programme to
monitor how this is addressed

Accepted

That the committee supports the expansion of HMO
licensing as a means of both raising housing standards
and generating income, and requests further details of the
options being considered, including the projected revenue

Accepted

That the committee reiterates the necessity for ongoing
scrutiny and oversight of Homes for Lambeth. This should
include regular reports back to the committee and to
Corporate Committee, on the structure and progress of
projects, and performance against KPIs.

Accepted

Response
b)The adequacy of the
proposed reserves
See paragraph 2.74 of the
Revenue and Capital Budget to
Cabinet and Council 8 February
2021 and 3 March 2021
Budget and Performance
Monitoring is reported to Cabinet
on a quarterly basis and includes
the monitoring of the capital
programme.
Update (August 2021)
The proposal to extend HMO
licensing was consulted on in late
2020/early 2021. A report
proposing adoption is scheduled
to be agreed by the Cabinet
Member for Housing and
Homelessness in August. There is
a 3 month stand still period so the
new licensing regime will be live
in November 2021.
Reporting is provided to the
Council through the Ownership
and Stewardship Panel on the
progress of projects and
performance against KPIs. These
meetings are being held more
frequently (quarterly) and papers
for these meetings are published
online here.
A comprehensive new
performance report is being
developed which includes project
progress and performance
against KPIs. This new report
standard will be used for
presentations as a matter of
routine.

Owner

RAG
rating

Ongoing

Christina
Thompson

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Sept 2021

Sandra
Roebuck

G

Ongoing

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Deadline

Page 103

Financial
Planning Report
2020/21 to
2024/25

Recommendation / Action

Item

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Sept 2021

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

The review of Ownership and
Stewardship Panel is on-going,
and has been informed by the
external governance review
undertaken by Bevan Brittan.
That the committee requests a further review of the OSP
and for the terms of reference to be circulated to the
committee.

Accepted

That a more structured approach to resident involvement
is required, with residents on project boards, and wider
Lambeth forums and with leaseholder and tenant
representatives on the Homes for Lambeth board.

Accepted in
part (see
response)

To request an update on future board structures, ideally
including an organogram, and details of increased
reporting to the council.

Accepted

The updated Shareholder
Agreement was executed on 12
April 2021. Further changes to
this agreement, including an
update of the OSP Terms of
Reference will be brought to OSP
for consideration and shared with
the committee once finalised
The approach to resident Board
recruitment will be set out in
HFL’s Resident Engagement
Strategy which will be presented
for approval in July.
In addition benchmarking
research is being conducted to
look at the approach to resident
Board Members within similar
organisations and LA wholly
owned companies. The
benchmarking will be considered
by HFL’s Remuneration &
Nominations Committee in July.

Updates on any changes to the
Homes for Lambeth Board
structure will be reported to
Ownership and Stewardship
Panel, along with the regular
reporting referred to above.

Aug 2021
On-going for
resident
engagement

On-going

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Page 104

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

Recommendation / Action

Item

Recommendation / Action

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That the committee be updated on any proposals for
Homes for Lambeth to become a community benefit
society.

Homes for
Lambeth
Governance
Review

That any material changes to financial predictions,
including income, expenditure and additional funding
requirements, be brought to the attention of the committee
as and when they occur.

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Ownership and Stewardship
Panel papers will be published
online here in the usual way and
will be available for members of
OSC to review
Should Homes for Lambeth wish
to progress with plans to become
a community benefit society then
Officers will ensure that the
committee is updated.

Material changes in the financial
plans for the HFL programme –
the HFL annual Business Plan
and the Joint Delivery Plan – as
approved prior to the start of each
financial year will be brought to
the Committee for information and
discussion, in a similar fashion to
the finance presentation in July
2020.

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

On-going

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Annual

Eleanor
Purser /
Sara Waller

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

23 March 2021: Crime and Disorder
Item

2. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

Recommendation / Action

That a thorough and widely publicised process be
established to enable local organisations and individuals
to work effectively with the police, especially regarding the
needs of young people and women, when seeking to
organise future events such as vigils or protests

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
The local authority play a key role
in supporting effective working of
the police in this process.
Details are being collated to
explain the process and will be
shared in due course.
UPDATE: 30.06.21:
The process and information in
relation to events is publicised by

Page 105

Accepted

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

G
(last
update 06
October
2021)

Lambeth Council (who will link in
with the Police) and by The Met
Police, who would similarly link
with Council colleagues.
Both websites (below) contain
information, advice and contact
information. On the Met website
there is an online form and this
then routes the enquiry to the
appropriate team or borough.
https://eventlambeth.co.uk/organi
sing/planning-your-event/

Page 106

https://www.met.police.uk/tua/tellus-about/eo/af/eventsprocessions/
Where additional support is
required, this should be flagged in
the application process.

Accepted

8. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the police be urged to assess whether existing
practices are conducive to building and maintaining trust
and confidence, and consider what more might be done to
improve this (for example, work with the relevant Lambeth
Made Safer work stream and ensure all officers are aware
of the importance of this work stream)

The BCU has developed an
engagement plan in line with the
Met Engagement plan devised by
Commander Ali Heydari; The
Mayor’s Action Plan; & local
strategies including Lambeth
Made Safer & Southwark Stands
Together. Links to these are
below:

Mayor’s Action Plan:
https://www.london.gov.uk/publi
cations/action-plan-transparencyaccountability-and-trustpolicing#actions

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Southwark Stands Together:
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/e
ngagement-andconsultations/tackling-racialinequalities-racism-and-injusticesouthwark-stands-together
Lambeth Made Safer:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.
uk/documents/s122975/Appendi
x%20A%20%20Lambeth%20Made%20Safer
%20Strategy%20v19.pdf

The BCU Commander has now
attended every Lambeth Made
Safer Community Forum with the
Cabinet Lead for Jobs, Skills &
Community Safety demonstrating
the level of commitment to
engaging with residents and
improve community safety and
address underlying issues that
contribute to crime and ASB
including Environment; Health;
Employment; Education;
Inequalities.
The MPS and BCU is reviewing
effectiveness and support for local
Safer Neighbourhood Ward
panels including refreshing
priorities, empowering local

Page 107

We are still waiting for details of
the Met Engagement plan devised
by Commander Ali Heydari.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Chief Supt
Colin
Wingrove
(MPS)

A

officers to use data and statistics
in a meaningful way to drive
action and outcomes suited to
local communities. Details of
timelines and objectives will be
shared with the Committee when
available.
The review of the Safer
Neighbourhood Ward Panels is
part of the Mayor’s Action Plan
(link above).

Page 108

As part of the reinvigoration of the
Ward Panels, the Metropolitan
Police Service has recently issued
guidance to the Ward panels on
priority setting. The guidance
seems to have been well
received.
At present we do not have any
hard timelines for the completion
of the review.
With this in mind, details of this
review process will be shared with
the OSC in due course.

Accepted

11. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That the latest Lambeth stop and search data (to include
statistics on complaints received and details of
subsequent action taken) be shared with the committee
together with the justification for continuing with the
current stop and search strategy given the low incidence
of positive outcomes

October 2021: The review has
been completed and is available
to Members.
Data on stop and search in
Lambeth can be found here:
https://www.met.police.uk/sd/stats
-and-data/met/stop-and-searchdashboard/
Lambeth experiences some of the
highest rates of violence and knife
crime in London. The positive
outcome rate for stop and search

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

has averaged 26% in 2021 this is
a 4% improvement on same
period in 2020. Stop and search
remains an important and
effective response to knife crime,
robbery and violence, and drivers
of crime such as drug offending. It
is one tool as part of a range of
police and partnership
interventions and activity.

UPDATE: 30.06.21:
The Plan has been reviewed by
both the Lambeth Made Safer
Implementation Board and
Strategy board this month (June).
The Plan is being shared with Cllr
Dyer this week (w/c Monday 28th
June) to review. Once feedback
has been collated from across this
review process, the LMS
Programme Manager will liaise
with the Disrupt and Deter
workstream lead (DS Neerav

Page 109

The BCU is developing a stop and
search improvement plan, with
insight and feedback from
community members and
organisations such as Black
Thrive and through the Lambeth
Made Safer Disrupt and Deter
work stream. This is to improve
overall quality of encounter and
seek greater local community
feedback, scrutiny and
involvement. The Improvement
Plan should be approved by the
end of June and will be shared
with the Committee when
available.

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Oct 2021

Pippa
Beeston
(National
Probation
Service)

G

Patel) with regards to sharing the
plan – including forwarding the
document with the OSC.

13. 2020 Safer
Lambeth
Partnership
Scrutiny Report

That further information be requested from the Probation
service regarding any potential issues which may affect
commissioned services during the reintegration process,
and how any potential risks are being managed

Accepted

Services previously delivered by
the CRC (Community
Rehabilitation Companies) have
been absorbed into the unified
Probation Service with staff being
transferred in the process to allow
for continuity of service. For
example, Unpaid Work
(Community Payback) that is now
under the remit of the HM Prison
and Probation Service will build
on the innovative work delivered
by CRCs.
If the OSC or colleagues would
like to nominate a community
project for Community Payback,
please use the following email
address: CP_@justice.gov.uk.

Page 110

The unification of the Probation
services commenced on Saturday
26th June 2021. There will be 12
probation regions across England
and Wales (11 in England and
Wales) each overseen by a
Regional Probation Director.
London has its own regional
director, with Lambeth being part
of the SE London district. Pippa
Beeston remains as part of the
borough’s governance structure,
taking the role of Head of
Probation Delivery Unit –
Lambeth.

Item
Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Update
Accessibility of
Council Digital
Services Scrutiny
Commission
Update

Accepted/
Rejected

To request a further paper to OSC at a future meeting on
customer service standards

That information on the Lambeth website regarding the
council structure and employee information/contact details
be enhanced and standardised

Response
To be considered by committee
when determining work
programme for 2021/22

Accepted

To approve the action plan set out at Appendix 2.
Accepted

7 June 2021: Developer Contributions / Responsible Procurement

The basic Council structure and
organisational chart covering
senior management grades are
currently published on the
Lambeth website. In addition it is
proposed to review and improve
our active directory, automated
switchboard and revisit our
Contact Us page.
Update (Sept 2021) - As a part of
the overall call centre technology
improvements, where we are
looking to implement new cloud
based and AI empowered
solution, we will review all
customer journeys and overall
access to services, which would
give improved experience to
residents and easier access to
services. It is not envisaged that
full employee information other
than published ones will be in
scope, however, these
improvements should reduce the
need for individual officers.
Current plan will see these
delivered in phases by the end of
the year.
Actions to be taken forward by
committee members and
Democratic Services as outlined
in the action plan

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

TBC

OSC

A

Aug 2021

Nataša
Patterson

G

Page 111

Lambeth Scrutiny
Review

Recommendation / Action

To be
implemented
throughout
2021/22

OSC /
Dem Servs

G

Item

Developer
Contributions

Developer
Contributions

That the CLIP approach be revised to ensure the
proceeds of growth are shared across the whole borough,
with a focus on the most deprived areas

To ensure there is a transparent and democratic localised
consultative mechanism for identifying NCIL priorities
outside of Neighbourhood Plans

That the committee requests further information regarding
the likely impact of the Government White Paper on
Lambeth and that steps are taken to ensure local people
can continue to have a say over how CIL is allocated

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Response
In essence this is what the new
proposals agreed by Cabinet on
the 5th July do. The agreed
proposals revise the approach to
NCIL such that the whole of the
borough is regarded as the local
area, which enables spend to take
place on the basis of need. See
Para 2.14 (b) of the Cabinet
Report from 5/7/21 in this regard.
This is also secured through the
new proposals agreed by Cabinet
(see para 2.12 of the Cabinet
Report of 5/7/21 for details of the
strengthened local consultation
mechanisms)

At the time of writing (August
2021) further details are still
awaited from Government on how
the White Paper proposals will be
implemented. Once these are
published officers will be able to
produce further analysis on the
likely impacts on Lambeth. In
respect of ensuring local people
can continue to have influence
over the allocation of CIL, this will
be achieved through the
strengthened consultation
mechanisms mentioned in para
2.12 of the Cabinet Report – and
the priorities that emerge from this
process will in turn be taken into
account in allocation decisions by
the Council.

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

September
2021

Rob
Bristow

G

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

TBC
(Discussions
currently
taking place
with Strategy
and Comms
Team)

TBC (subject
to
Government
pronouncem
ents)

Page 112

Developer
Contributions

Recommendation / Action

Item

Developer
Contributions

Recommendation / Action

That further information be provided regarding the
Community Connections fund, including how success will
be measured

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Accepted

Developer
Contributions

That a more detailed breakdown is required going forward
of how developer contributions are accrued and spent, to
ward level

Rejected

Developer
Contributions

To ensure spending on infrastructure is properly managed
at a project level in order that schemes which are
overspending can be readily identified and issues
addressed

Accepted

At the time of writing, details of
the Community Connections Fund
are still being worked up in
discussion with the relevant
members of Cabinet – details can
be shared with OSC once
available.

The Draft Revised Lambeth Local
Plan, which will be reported to
Cabinet and Full Council in
September for adoption, is the
lead strategy for the Council in
this regard, and has recently been
declared sound by a Government
Inspector following an
Examination in Public. This
document has been informed by a
raft of evidence including the new
London Plan (adopted earlier this
year) and our own JLL office
study which advised on the future
of office space in the borough
following the pandemic.
This recommendation was
carefully considered but ultimately
not accepted for the reasons set
out at para. 2.11 of the Cabinet
Report of 5/7/21.
Spending by project is managed
in accordance with the Council’s
established financial management
systems, and is undertaken by the
relevant project team with
oversight from Finance and the
relevant Directorate Management
Team or Transformation Board.
In addition a new Capital
Programme Board is being set up

Owner

RAG
rating

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

September
2021

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

July 2021

Rob
Bristow

R

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Deadline
TBC –
subject to
ongoing
discussions
with the
relevant
Cabinet
member/The
Leader

October
2021

Page 113

Developer
Contributions

That a strategy is needed regarding changes in the use of
space as a result of the pandemic, both in terms of
working and where people choose to live

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure the Responsible Procurement policy is applied
in an effective and transparent manner, including setting
tangible targets on social value priorities, spot checks on
compliance, appropriate training for all contract managers
in using the electronic contract management system,
transparency of data to the maximum extent possible, and
penalties for failing to meet social value targets.

Accepted

Accepted

Response
from October this year to monitor
capital spending across
programmes to ensure that
spending is optimised and any
overspends/underspends can be
appropriately addressed.
Measures to achieve greater
transparency around spending
decisions for developer
contributions and demonstrating
that these are linked to resident
priorities were agreed by Cabinet,
and the measures to achieve this
are set out in paras 2.12 and 2.13
of the Cabinet Report of 5/7/21;
with greater accountability
ensured through more detailed
reporting to Cabinet, as set out in
para 2.15 of the report.
The council is committed to
ensure that the Responsible
Procurement policy is consistently
applied across all procurement
activity and that we are able to
proactively report on deliverables
and impact. As such the
responsible procurement is an
integral part of the development of
a new corporate contract
management framework which
will include comprehensive
guidance materials and training
for contract managers. Phase 2
of the development of the
council’s new electronic
management system (eCMS) will
enable more efficient reporting
against responsible procurement
commitments. The contract
management will include clear

Deadline

TBC – this is
subject to
discussions
on the timing
of
implementati
on of these
measures
with Strategy
and Comms
colleagues
and Finance
colleagues

March 2022

Owner

RAG
rating

Rob
Bristow

A
(last
update 08
November
2021)

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Page 114

Developer
Contributions

That greater transparency is needed regarding the
decision making process for spending developer
contributions, including how these link to resident views
and relevant policy priorities (for example, Borough Plan
outcomes)

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

To consult with staff regarding their views on working
conditions when a contract change results in them
working under a different company

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure a process is in place to review social value
commitments and associated KPIs whenever a contract is
renewed

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible

To ensure contracts are monitored to ensure commitment
to and compliance with the modern slavery charter

Accepted

Accepted

guidance for the effective
management of contracts
including non-performance. This
will be further supported by the
development of a new
Commercial Advisory team
supporting contract managers
with complex performance issues.
For all contracts that may impact
staff working on the existing
service, the council must consider
whether Transfer of Undertakings
(Protection of Employment)
regulations (TUPE)
applies. Where TUPE does
apply, the employer (this may be
the council where a contract has
previously been delivered inhouse or another third party
contractor) must consult
employees or their
representatives about anything to
do with the transfer that could
affect them. The council works
with incumbent providers and new
contractors to ensure transition
and mobilisation of new services
are effectively managed and the
impact to workers is mitigated
wherever possible.
The contract management
framework will include clear
guidance regarding review of
contracts as part of the annual
review process and at key
contract milestones including
when enacting an option to
extend.
Compliance against modern
slavery charter will be built into

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

G

Oct 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Oct 2021

Sasa Glisic

A

Page 115

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Procurement
Update

Response

Deadline

Owner

(last
update 10
November
2021)

the contract management
assurance framework and form
part of annual contract reviews.
That Trade Union membership and involvement be
championed for staff employed under Council contracts

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

That clarity be provided to the committee regarding the
ability of the Council to use its leverage via responsible
procurement to secure wider societal and environmental
benefits beyond local authority borders under current law.
This includes looking at the past record of organisations to
assess their suitability, requiring adherence to Council
policies and practice, and encouraging contractors to pay
the London Living Wage to its entire workforce (not just
those working as part of the Lambeth contract)

Accepted

(To provide
clarity)
Accepted

The council ensures that all
potential contractors adhere to
appropriate employment
legislation and regulations as part
of the procurement process. This
includes the legal right for
collective participation and to join
a Trade Union. The Council is
keen to ensure Trade Unions can
function effectively within
Lambeth, and that they have
access to the information they
need to function effectively. As
such the council is committed to
protecting Trade Union rights and
will support workers to ensure
they have information about their
rights. However, we consider it to
be an individual’s right to choose
whether or not they wish to join a
Trade Union. champion trade
union membership.
The Public Services (Social
Value) Act, 2012 provides the
legislative framework for the
council’s Responsible
Procurement Policy. The
council’s social value duty is
balanced by obligations to ensure
fair and open competition as set
out in the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 which state,
inter alia, that award criteria must
be ‘linked to the subject matter’ of
the contract in question, must be
contract-specific, and must not

July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

G

Page 116

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

RAG
rating

G
July 2021

Genine
Whitehorne

Item

That a clear process is required to demonstrate how the
aims of the Responsible Procurement policy link to other
Council priorities and strategies (such as the Borough
Plan)

Accepted/
Rejected

Accepted

Response
be aimed at assessing the
business or corporate policies of
the tenderer. In considering how,
in conducting the process of
procurement, it might act with a
view to
securing the improvement of the
economic, social and
environmental well-being of its
area, the Public Services (Social
Value) Act requires that the
procuring authority must consider
only matters that are relevant to
what is proposed to be procured.
Further, in doing so, it must
consider the extent to which it is
proportionate in all the
circumstances to take those
matters into account. As such the
council does not legally have the
ability to require contractors to
pay LLW beyond Lambeth
specific contracts and cannot
consider other reputational factors
beyond those directly related to
the ability to deliver the a specific
contract. Additionally, the council
has very little commercial
leverage to influence supplier
behaviour beyond delivery of
Lambeth specific contracts
In March 2021 work was carried
out to link the Responsible
Procurement policy with
Lambeth’s Societal Impact
Framework that the Council has
developed. This framework
reflects the Council’s priority
areas set out in key strategies
(including the Borough Plan as

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Page 117

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Recommendation / Action

Oct 2021

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

RAG
rating

Deadline

Owner

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

well as the UN Sustainable
Development Goals). Section 9
of the current Policy sets out how
it supports the Borough Plan. At
the policy’s next review point, the
intention is to align the language
in the Responsible Procurement
policy to this framework and
create further opportunities for
social and environmental benefits
through procurement. This work
will be completed alongside
strategy and policy leads from
across the Council.
To endorse the Preston model as a means of prioritising
the needs of local business and the community

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

That the Council should actively consider insourcing
services whenever feasible

Accepted

Further guidance is being
developed to support the update
of the Responsible Procurement
Policy. This will include a number
of case studies showcasing best
practice (both internal and
external). It is important to
recognise that the approach in
Lambeth already exceeds the
outcomes achieved in Preston
however these successes are not
effectively communicated. The
case studies will help to more
effectively share the learning, As
a part of this process, it is
intended to include further
information on external models
(including the Preston example).
When commissioning services it
is already mandatory that a range
of options are considered as part
of developing the business case.
These options include assessing
the council’s ability to deliver the
services in-house. This options

Page 118

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

To ensure the Transformation & Efficiency Champion is
fully involved in the coordination of responsible
procurement with related initiatives such as societal
impact of spend and the performance management and
appraisal process, and to request a future report back on
how this is working

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

To ensure an appropriate balance is struck between value
for money and social value commitments in the
procurement system

Accepted

Lambeth
Responsible

To review the role of consultant advisors in the tender
process to ensure value for money and transparent
delivery of social value commitments

Accepted

Accepted

appraisal will be further
strengthened by new guidance
that will provide commissioners /
service managers with more
information about factors to
consider when undertaking a
make or buy assessment.
The Transformation & Efficiency
Champion is already well
engaged in discussions regarding
our approach. This will continue
as work develops and the
Champion will be invited to be an
active participant in the update of
the Policy to inform and shape
priorities going forward.
Social value is an important
consideration in our procurement
activity. When evaluating
tenders, it is important that careful
consideration is given to the split
between price and quality as part
of the evaluation methodology.
This split will vary depending on
the type of services being
procured and the way in which is
it being sourced. It has recently
been agreed to introduce a
mandatory 10% social value
criteria for all procurements over
£500k. Social value must be
included as part of the evaluation
methodology for procurements
below £500k though the
percentage will be decided as
appropriate for the type and value
of contract being awarded.
Consultants and specialist
advisors play an important role in
many of our procurement

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Sasa Glisic
A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

March 2022

Oct 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Sasa Glisic

A

Page 119

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Procurement
Update

That the Opportunity Lambeth website be significantly
enhanced and that all jobs arising from procurement
activities be advertised on the site

Lambeth
Responsible

That more consistency is required regarding data
collection and publication and that the establishment of a

Accepted

Accepted

projects. For very complex or
technical areas it is vital that the
council benefits from expert
knowledge in order to ensure the
best outcomes are delivered for
Lambeth residents. The Council
has recently established a new
Commercial and Advisory team
creating greater internal capability
to assess commercial
opportunities. The use of external
consultants should always be
assessed to ensure it represents
best value and to determine how
social value commitments can be
supported. Consultants must
adhere to council policies.
The ‘Opportunity Lambeth’
service has secured £150,000
capital funding to further develop
its digital functions and will
commence development once
project manager is in place. The
Skills and Employment team
remain committed to advertising
all employment opportunities
arising from procurement
activities. We are now working to
establish a corporate approach to
ensure that the team are notified
of these new opportunities in a
timely fashion and that we have a
consistent approach to monitoring
outcomes. The Skills and
Employment division have
ringfenced resource to support
this activity.
Data and reporting are being
addressed as part of the further
development of eCMS. The

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A
(last
update 10
November
2021)

Dec 2021

Sasa Glisic

A

Page 120

Lambeth
Responsible
Procurement
Update

Response

Item

Recommendation / Action
monitoring committee to oversee social value
commitments be considered

OSC Work
Programme

That the following items be considered for inclusion in the
work programme for the 2021-22 municipal term:
Issues with Thames Water
Benefit process and complaints
Road traffic collisions/road safety

Response

Deadline

RAG
rating
(last
update 10
November
2021)

governance of the reporting is yet
to be decided and the
appropriateness of the
establishment of a monitoring
committee will be considered.
However, it is important to
understand the role, purpose and
remit of such a committee. This
will be considered in consultation
with the lead Cabinet Member
and the Transformation and
efficiency champion.
Items added to the future work
programme.
Accepted

Owner

April 2022

Democratic
Services

G

14 July 2021: Care Home Provision and Delivery in Lambeth
Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To improve person centred care planning and ensure
care pathways were joined up and understood by the
public, Adult Social Care should:
- Develop guidance, including a plain English route
map, to help service users and carers navigate the
system;
- Provide a single point of contact for questions about
care home provision and delivery in Lambeth; and
- Ensure each care home resident had a dedicated
point of contact so both service users and carers
know who to contact if they have a question about
their care.

Accepted

Care Home
Provision and

The Council’s support for care homes during the
coronavirus pandemic, including the provision of advice,
guidance, training and equipment, be commended.

Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

Jane
Bowie/Fiona
Connolly

A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

Jane Bowie

G
(last
update

1. Producing guidance
including a map
2. Establishing a SPoC for all
care home residents
November 2021: Adult Social
Care is working with agencies
on this. When agreed will
produce updated guidance,
update website, produce a map
and clarify SPOC for users and
families
Letter to Council officers
providing support, public health
and commissioners

1. Guidance
– March
2022
2. December
2021

September
2021

Page 121

Procurement
Update

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care homes and carers be thanked for providing service
users with outstanding support during the coronavirus
pandemic.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

The Council introduces a care worker of the year award,
to recognise the outstanding care provided across the
borough.

Adult Social Care work across the Council and with
colleagues and partners, including providers, to raise the
profile of the work done by care homes and promote
opportunities for a career in care homes.

Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

Establish award event, to align
with Council staff awards, for
2022 with nominations including
from sector for 21-22

Through NWDA multi-agency
workstream
November 2021: This has now
been implemented into BAU
processes

September
2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

July 2022

Jen
Burgess/Jan
e Bowie

Ongoing

Jane
Bowie/Cathy
Ingram

Investigate potential
Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To aid recruitment, to investigate whether it would be
possible for Opportunity Lambeth to work with Care
Homes across the borough.

The Council sign up to UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter
and ensure those working in care homes receive
payment of their salary for periods when they are on sick
leave, are given appropriate training, receive regular
appraisals/pay reviews and feel supported.

Accepted

Under
consideration

January 2022

UNISON’s Ethical Care Charter
relates to home care not care
home services – the regulator
CQC and commissioners retain
oversight that care home staff
do remain supported including
through completion of appraisals
and provision of training and
adoption of all the remaining
elements of the Charter for
home care services is currently
under political consideration.

Jade
Holvey/Jane
Bowie

Jane Bowie

17
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
10
Novembe
r 2021)
A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

Page 122

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Letter to all care homes
including message for care staff

RAG
rating

Item

Recommendation / Action

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Lessons learnt in relation to Covid-19 should be shared
with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee within 6 – 12
months. This should cover matters in relation to both
care home provision and delivery during the pandemic,
with input from service users and carers. To ensure
service users and carers are listened to and heard,
thought should be given to the methodology that is used,
and by who, to capture these experiences.

All care homes should have a clear, transparent and well
publicised complaints procedure, setting out how to raise
concerns freely and confidentially, who to contact and
how to appeal.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

To help create an atmosphere where workers feel able
to report concerns, the Council should ensure all care
homes have a whistleblowing policy and ensure staff are
aware that they can raise concerns freely and
confidentially.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

The Council ensures all care homes hold regular
meetings for families and carers, with suitable
safeguards established to support, and hear from,
residents who are not visited/supported by friends or
family.

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

An annual report on care homes be provided to both
Overview and Scrutiny and Cabinet to provide details
on:
Monitoring and inspection, including data from the
Care Quality Commission (CQC) and Lambeth’s
own commissioners;
How CQC ratings in Lambeth compared to other
boroughs;
The challenges and opportunities for staff and
service providers – including information on staffing
levels, vacancies and future staffing requirements;

Accepted

Response
Build on review report
completed by public health April
2021 by collating views /
experiences of residents and
carers to produce 1 composite
report

Deadline

July 2022

Owner
Jane
Bowie/Ese
Iyasere/
Healthwatch
?

Confirm every care home has
appropriate complaints policy
and procedure in place
Accepted

Accepted

Accepted

November 2021: Selected
homes will be requested to send
an example of complaint
received and managed as per
their policy, in the last 6 months.
Confirm all care homes have
whistleblowing policy in place
and staff are made aware of
how to access

Confirm all care homes have
regular resident and carer
meetings in place and systems
to ensure views of residents
without visitors get captured

October 2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

October 2021

Michelle
Homer/Jane
Bowie

October 2021

Jen
Burgess/Jan
e Bowie

RAG
rating
A
(last
update
10
Novembe
r 2021)

G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

To draft as supplement to
annual ASC complaints report.

Accepted

September
2022

Jane Bowie

A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

Page 123

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Accepted/
Rejected

Item

Recommendation / Action
-

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Response

Accepted

To be included in the agenda for
December 2021

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

The experiences of service users and carers,
including feedback on the care and services
received;
The number of complaints received as well as
lessons learnt; and
The impact of Brexit and Covid-19, including the
supply of personal protective equipment (PPE).

A report on the future use of Minnie Kidd House, setting
out care provided, environmental issues, including work
required for the building to be compliant with fire safety
standards, and next steps, be considered by Overview
and Scrutiny at a future committee meeting, with input
from Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust.
To help maximise health and wellbeing in care homes,
schemes that increase community interaction and
encourage residents to get involved in local activities,
including interaction with ward councillors, should be
supported.

Accepted

An officer briefing on future care models be provided to
Councillors.

To be included in NWDA
workstream (action no. 5)
November 2021: This has now
been implemented into BAU
processes

December
2021

Ongoing

Briefing with outline timelines to
be presented
Accepted

January 2022

Jane Bowie

Jane
Bowie/Cathy
Ingram

Jade
Holvey/Jane
Bowie

G

G
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)
A
(last
update
17
Novembe
r 2021)

12 October 2021: Climate Emergency Response/LTN Commission
Item

Recommendation / Action

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate

That the findings of the Citizens’ Assembly form the
basis of the Council’s carbon reduction action plan,
and that the Council continue to involve residents in
discussions on climate change.
That the Council does more to encourage reduction
in household and business waste generation and to

Accepted/
Rejected
Accepted

Response

Deadline

Owner
Hannah
Jameson
Hannah
Jameson

RAG
rating
A

Page 124

Care Home
Provision and
Delivery in
Lambeth

Accepted/
Rejected

Item
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

increase reuse and recycling in line with targets,
through the use of incentives, penalties, improved
communication and best practice from equivalent
authorities and community reuse schemes.
That the Council prioritises the retrofitting of its
most energy inefficient homes, particularly onstreet properties.

Hannah
Jameson

That the option of incentivising private occupiers
and landlords to improve the energy efficiency of
their homes be explored, particularly through cooperative and community energy providers.

Hannah
Jameson

That the Committee be provided a strategic
overview of how the Council and its partners work
together on climate change mitigations and
adaptations.

Hannah
Jameson

That details of the targets, outcomes and evidence
for the interventions included in the report and
action plan be provided to the Committee.

Hannah
Jameson

That the Committee be provided details of how the
Council will continue to involve residents in the
development of its carbon reduction action plan.

Hannah
Jameson

That details of the Communications Strategy and
how it will be publicised to residents be provided to
the Committee.

Hannah
Jameson

That the Committee be provided details of flood
mitigation actions to be taken in the near future,
including targets and expected outcomes.

Hannah
Jameson

Page 125

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Recommendation / Action

Item
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update
Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods
Commission:
Draft Report

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

That the Council works with partners, particularly
Thames Water, to ensure that flooding is
addressed in an adequate and timely manner.
That the Council’s targets on transport emissions
be clarified to the Committee and that a 2030 target
for net zero emissions relating to transport be
adopted.
That details of the forthcoming Road Safety
Strategy be provided to the Committee, particularly
regarding the involvement of young people in its
development and the work of partners such as
Transport for London and schools.
That the Committee be provided with details of the
Council’s current demolitions policy, the Mayor of
London’s guidance on demolitions and the Royal
Academy of Engineering’s proposals on a
presumption against demolition.
To approve the report for presentation to Cabinet
subject to consideration of the following comments:
1. That a strategic overview of the implementation
of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods be conducted
with a view to provide guidance on how similar
interventions could be implemented in an
evidence-based manner in the future.
2. That local people’s feedback is listened to and
that the Council proactively seeks to resolve
conflict and disagreement amongst residents.
3. That the Council ensures that the needs of
disabled people are met.
4. That the feedback and needs of individual
businesses, particularly those negatively
affected, be considered and responded to.

Owner

RAG
rating

Hannah
Jameson

Hannah
Jameson

Hannah
Jameson

Page 126

Lambeth’s
Climate
Emergency
Response:
Progress Update

Recommendation / Action

Hannah
Jameson
November 2021: The report
was approved at Cabinet on 22
November 2021

Accepted

Nov 2021

Hannah
Jameson/
Simon
Phillips

G
(last
update
22
Novembe
r 2021)

Item

Recommendation / Action

Accepted/
Rejected

Response

Deadline

Owner

RAG
rating

5. That communications be utilised effectively
across the Council to ensure residents and
businesses are aware of LTNs and any
changes.

Page 127

This page is intentionally left blank

